
Meeting of:  Health, Schools and Care Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

Date: Wednesday, 26th June, 2019
Time: 6.00 pm.
Venue: Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, 

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

3.  URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

4.  ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting. 

5.  MINUTES 3 - 13

To consider the minutes of the meetings of the Health, Schools and 
Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee held 30th January and 13th 
March 2019. 

6.  JOINT SCRUTINY PANEL FOR PENNINE CARE (MENTAL 
HEALTH) TRUST 

14 - 19

To note the minutes of the meeting held 21st March 2019. 

Public Document Pack



7.  JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR 
PENNINE ACUTE HOSPITALS NHS TRUST 

20 - 24

To note the minutes of the meeting held 15th January 2019 

8.  SITE FOR NEW SPECIAL SCHOOL 25 - 29

To consider a proposed site for a new special school  

9.  3RD & 4TH QUARTER SOCIAL CARE COMPLAINTS 30 - 47

To consider social care complaints received in the 3rd and 4th quarters 
of 2018/19. 

10.  ADULT, CHILDREN & PUBLIC HEALTH DIRECTORATE PLANS 
2018-19 QUARTER 4 PERFORMANCE UPDATE 

48 - 82

Quarterly performance data relating to the Public Health, Adult Care 
and Children’s Directorates. 

11.  HEALTH, SCHOOLS AND CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE - WORK PROGRAMME 

83 - 85

To consider a Work Programme for the Committee in 2019/20 

Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee Members
Councillor Sultan Ali                  Councillor Jean Hornby
Councillor Patricia Dale             Councillor Rachel Massey
Councillor Irene Davidson         Councillor Alan McCarthy
Councillor Ray Dutton                Councillor Susan Smith
Councillor James Gartside         Councillor Patricia Sullivan
Councillor John Hartley 

For more information about this meeting, please contact: 
Peter Thompson 
Governance and Committee Services
Floor 2, Number One Riverside,
Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Telephone: 01706 924715
e-mail; peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk 



HEALTH, SCHOOLS AND CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Wednesday, 30th January 2019

PRESENT:  Councillor Dutton (in the Chair); Councillors Dale, Davidson, 
Gartside, Hartley, McCarthy, Susan Smith and Sullivan 

OFFICERS:  T. Harrison (Assistant Director, Adult Care - Commissioning), 
J. McGregor (Assistant Director – Children’s Social Care Services), F. Davies, 
J. Hassall (Children’s Services) and P. Thompson (Resources Directorate) 

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:   Mr. P. Cheetham, Ms. J. Reynolds and Ms. C. 
McCann (Pennine Care NHS Foundation) and one member of the public.

APOLOGIES
96 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Biant, Brosnan 
and Hornby.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
97 There were no declarations of interests.

MINUTES
98 Resolved – that the minutes of the meeting of the Health, Schools and 
Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee, held 28th November 2018, be signed 
by the Chair and approved as a correct record.

PENNINE CARE NHS FOUNDATION TRUST
99 The Chair welcomed Mr. P. Cheetham, Ms. J. Reynolds and Ms. C. 
McCann from Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust to the meeting who were 
in attendance to provide a presentation and general update on the services 
provided by the Trust within and without the Borough. Pennine Care provides 
mental health and community services to people living in the boroughs of 
Bury, Oldham and Rochdale, also providing mental health services in 
Stockport, Trafford and Tameside and Glossop. In this regard the Trust 
served a population of 1.3 million people, operated from 250 locations and 
had a workforce of over 5,000.

In the Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale area (HMR) the Trust’s “service 
offer” was broken down as follows: Adult services (Primary Care, Community 
and inpatient), Child and Adolescent (Community and inpatient), Older 
People’s (Community and inpatient), Substance Misuse, Leaning Disability 
and Rehabilitation and High Support.

The Trust currently offers community services, which are provided by a large 
range of clinical and support staff including: district nurses, school nurses, 
health visitors, therapists, dentists and allied health professionals. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



In terms of specialist services, Pennine Care provided Child and Adolescent 
Mental Health Services, mental health support for Children, Young People 
and Families, dedicated Transition, Neuro-developmental, Primary Mental 
Health and Cared for Children mini teams integrated within the Service, 
including links to tier three inpatient units.

The presentation looked at ways of integrating services with the local health 
economy and in that regard examined all the different partners and other 
agencies that had a role to play in the provision of services by the Trust. In the 
Rochdale Borough the Trust had a series of locality teams which were largely 
split along the boundaries of the Borough’s four Township areas. Each of the 
locality teams had staff that worked in the community and in schools.

Members of the Committee were advised that the Trust was the subject of a 
‘well led’ CQC inspection between August and October 2018, which 
concluded that overall the Trust still ‘required improvement’ but nonetheless 
had highlighted a number of areas of good practice within the Trust’s footprint 
such as dentistry, oral health and children’s mental health services.

Members asked questions and sought clarification from Mr Cheetham and his 
colleagues including:

a. Provision of ‘out of hours’ services that are offered by the Trust
b. Clarification was sought relating to the provision of dentistry and oral 

health services
c. Clarification of the current financial situation appertaining to the Trust
d. Details of the Trust’s workforce strategy and staffing levels
e. Outcomes of the recent CQC ‘well led’ inspection and details of any 

follow-up inspections that the CQC may be planning to undertake

Members of the Committee expressed an interest in visiting the Trust’s 
facilities and services that were on offer at Nye Bevan House, Rochdale.

At the conclusion of the presentation the representatives from Pennine Care 
NHS Foundation Trust were thanked for their attendance and invited to attend 
future meetings to provide an update on the issues that were discussed.

Resolved:
1. That the presentation by representatives of Pennine Care NHS 

Foundation Trust be noted and welcomed.
2. Arrangement be made for Members of the Committee to visit the 

Trust’s facilities and services that were on offer at Nye Bevan House, 
Rochdale.

3. That details of the ‘out of hours’ services that are offered by the Trust 
be forwarded to Members of the Committee.

4. That the representatives of Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust be 
invited to  future meeting of the  Committee to provide an update on 
their service provision in the Borough of Rochdale.

Page 4



MARKET OVERSIGHT REPORT
100 The Committee considered a report of the Assistant Director - Adult 
Care (Commissioning) regarding the Market Oversight Plan which provided 
quality assurance information for services commissioned by the Adult Care 
service for the third quarter of 2018/19 (October - December).

The Adult Care Service commissioned external provider services to deliver a 
range of care services to adults with eligible social care needs. The Adult 
Care commissioning team assured the quality of the services. The market 
oversight report presented quality assurance information for quarter three of 
2018/19 for the Committee to scrutinise.

In response to a query from a Member the Assistant Director - Adult Care 
(Commissioning) advised that the Council was working closely with other local 
authorities, who were hosting Rochdale residents, to secure appropriate 
funding, or affordable care packages, that may result in more Rochdale 
Borough residents being housed within the Borough. In terms of ‘out of 
borough’ placements the Assistant Director assured the Committee that all 
providers were monitored by the Care Quality Commission.

Resolved – that the report be noted.

NEED FOR EXTRA RECEPTION CLASS PLACES 2018 - 2021
101 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Children’s 
Services, which advised that the borough of Rochdale continued to see large 
numbers of children applying for in-year primary school places. In the 2017/18 
academic year a total of 970 new school places were applied for in-year 
(primary and secondary combined). For the four months from September to 
December the current academic year’s total of additional school in-year 
applications was 30.7% higher than the previous year. 

Birth rates from the latest Office of National statistics data available regarding 
Rochdale, for the 2016/17 academic year, showed that there were 3,051 
births in the borough. This nearly equals the previous record birth rate of 
3,069 which occurred in 2011/12. The 2011/12 children were presently in year 
2 and made up the largest school cohort with a total of 3075 year 2 pupils 
across the borough.

Recent house completion data that was reported in the local media 
(28/11/2018), showed that the creation of new housing had doubled in the 
2017/18 financial year to 799 completions. The average rate of new house 
builds 2010 – 2016 was 381 per year. The 5 year Strategic Housing Land 
Availability Assessment (April 2018) gave an average house build rate of over 
850 per annum for the next 10 years and while this could be affected by 
economic conditions and forecasts, the additional forecasted children must be 
considered.

As a consequence of the three elements detailed above, extra capacity was 
needed at the Primary school estate in all areas of the borough.

Page 5



In considering the report the Committee sought clarification on the placement 
of children in the borough’s primary schools, the likely impact of the greater 
Manchester Spatial Framework, the funding streams for Free Schools and 
Academies and issues around capacity at some of the borough’s primary 
schools especially in the Pennines Township area.

The Committee, in considering the report also noted that it was due to be 
presented to the Cabinet on 26th February 2019.

Resolved:
1. The report be noted. 
2. This Committee confirms that it has considered the information 

presented in the submitted report and supports the proposed 
expansion of the Primary school estate with the understanding that 
further details will be brought before the relevant Township 
Committees, in due course, for consideration.

3. The Committee confirms that it has considered the possibility of new 
Primary schools being needed, which would be required to be created 
using the Free School/Academy programme - housing developer 
education contributions through the S106 procedure were being sought 
from all suitable housing developments.

NEED FOR EXTRA YEAR 7 PLACES 2019-2028
102 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Children’s 
Services which informed Members that Secondary school intakes for 
September 2019 and 2020 were going to be higher than usual but current 
estimates suggested that with additional capacity being sought, places were 
expected to be available for all pupils living in the borough. The Council had a 
statutory duty to provide education and school places to all school aged 
children living in the borough and consequently has a duty to plan adequately 
for predicted pupil numbers.

The Borough of Rochdale had seen consistent growth in its school cohorts. In 
October 2005 there were 2138 pupils in the year 7 cohort and in 2018/19 this 
number was up to 2916 pupils; which represented a 36% increase.

Since 2012 Secondary schools in Rochdale have been expanded and/or 
taken more children creating another 330 places per year group, or a total of 
1650 additional school places. Building extensions are currently underway at 
Matthew Moss High School and Siddal Moor Sports College. This means 
there are currently 2880 year 7 places available in Rochdale schools with no 
further opportunities available for expansion.

The report also updated the Committee on the progress for the two new 
schools needed in the borough that were planned to be built in the Pennines 
and Middleton Townships respectively. Discussions with both schools and the 
Department for Education were ongoing. 

In considering the report, Members noted that it was due to be presented to 
the Council’s Cabinet on 26th February 2019.

Page 6



Resolved:
The Committee notes the report and the measures still in development to limit 
the possibility of a shortage of year 7 places.

IVF FUNDING POLICY CONSULTATION
103   The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Public Health that 
provided Members with an update on feedback received from the IVF 
consultation that ran from the 3rd December 2018 to 16th January 2019; a 
response to the key thematic points raised by stakeholders and members of 
the public; and a set of recommendations and supporting evidence to consider 
in regard to future IVF funding Policy.

Feedback that had been received via the public consultation was considered 
in detail and, as a result of some of the points raised; the Heywood, Middleton 
and Rochdale NHS Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) had reviewed the 
evidence base behind its preferred policy option. The CCG was satisfied that 
the decision to recommend a change in policy to one funded cycle was 
supported by evidence, as well as the need to respond to the significant 
financial pressure currently facing the NHS as a whole. 

A number of points were raised via the consultation that individuals/couples 
with pre-existing medical conditions would be disproportionately 
disadvantaged by a proposed change in policy. The CCG had reviewed this, 
and individuals/couples who have a clinically exceptional need would be able 
to have their case evaluated via the Individual Funding Request (IFR) route at 
the CCG’s offices. 

The policy was being recommended for immediate implementation but would 
not affect any patients who have already been referred to an IVF service 
(including those who are waiting but have not yet been seen) and patients on 
any other part of the IVF pathway, including tests for subfertility. The 
Committee was advised that the recommendations in the report were 
considered and approved by the Council/CCG’s joint Integrated 
Commissioning Board meeting that was held on 29th January 2019. The 
Director of Public Health updated the Committee on the outcome of the 
Integrated Commissioning Board’s deliberations in this regard.  

Resolved:
The Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee notes the 
decisions made by the Integrated Commissioning Board, at its meeting on 29th 
January 2019, with regard to a revised IVF funding policy:
a. HMR CCG adopts a policy of funding one IVF cycle. However, all 
individuals/couples who have a clinically exceptional need will be able to have 
their case evaluated via the Individual Funding Request (IFR), route at HMR 
CCG.
b. HMR CCG adopts this policy effective from 1st February 2019.

Page 7



ADULT, CHILDREN AND PUBLIC HEALTH DIRECTORATE PLANS 
2018/19 QUARTER 3 PERFORMANCE UPDATE
104 The Committee scrutinised a report detailing progress during the third 
quarter 2018/19 (1st October – 31st December) towards the achievement of 
the targets contained in the Adult Care Directorate Plan 2018/19, Children’s 
Services Directorate Plan 2018/19 and Public Health Directorate Plan 
2018/19.  
 
Resolved:
That the report be noted.

SOCIAL CARE COMPLAINTS
105 The Directors of Children’s Services and Adult Services presented a 
report that provided Members with a summary of Adult and Children’s Social 
Care complaints received during the first and second quarter periods of 
2018/19 (April – September).

Social care complaints are subject to a statutory reporting framework which 
are scrutinised by the Care Quality Commission. The Council’s Customer 
Feedback Team extracted and reported on the information recorded for social 
care services during the study period, including the number of complaints 
received at each stage of the process, the numbers of complaints that are 
investigated and responded to within the permitted timescale and the numbers 
that were upheld.

Resolved: 
That the report be noted.

JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR PENNINE 
ACUTE HOSPITALS NHS TRUST
106 Resolved;
That the Minutes of the meeting of the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee for Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust, held 15th October 2018, 
be noted.

GREATER MANCHESTER JOINT HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
107 Resolved:
That the Minutes of the meeting of Greater Manchester Joint Health Scrutiny 
Committee held 14th November 2018, be noted.

WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19
108 Resolved:
That the Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s Work 
Programme 2018/19 be noted.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
109 Decision:

Page 8



That the Press and Public be excluded from the meeting during consideration 
of the following two items of business, in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended.

Reason for Decision:

Should the press and public remain during the following item of business as 
there may be a disclosure of information that is deemed to be exempt under 
Part 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

UPDATE ON COMMISSIONING CONTRACTS
110 The Assistant Director - Adult Care (Commissioning) advised the 
Committee on actions approved by the Chair to authorise the submission of a 
report, relating to Commissioning in the Adult Care Service, on to the 
Cabinet’s private agenda. The Assistant Director undertook to submit a report, 
to a future meeting of the Committee, appertaining to outlining the 
Commissioning issues.

Resolved:
The report be noted.

2019/20 - 2020/21 SAVINGS PROGRAMME FOR THE INTEGRATED 
HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE POOLED FUND
111    The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Public Health that 
provided Members with: an update on the Savings Programme and an 
overview of the proposed phasing and categorisation of round 1 and 2 savings 
schemes; the round 2 savings proposals to contribute to closing the budget 
gap for the Integrated Health & Social Care Pooled Fund for 2019/20 & 
2020/21; an overview of the Programme Framework which was developed to 
provide assurance around the delivery of the Savings Programme; and an 
overview of the Decision Making Framework which was developed to aid 
decision making following a discussion at the Integrated Commissioning 
Board (ICB) development session in December 2018. 

The Committee was advised that on 17th December 2018, a meeting was held 
with the main acute provider Pennine Acute Hospital Trust (PAHT), to discuss 
all savings proposals which would affect them and in particular those affecting 
urgent care. At this meeting an agreement was made between provider and 
commissioner to work together to deliver the required savings. Whilst it was 
recognised that savings needed to be delivered in 2019/20, it was agreed that 
there is a need to take a more strategic approach so as not to destabilise the 
urgent care system. The outcome was an agreement for a full Planned Care 
and Urgent Care review to take place before some of the savings schemes 
can be implemented. 

Resolved:
The Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee notes the 
decisions of the Integrated Commissioning Board, in relation to this matter, at 
its meeting on 29th January 2019, as follows:

Page 9



c. To approve the revised categorisation and phasing of schemes and the 
implementation of a full Urgent and Planned Care Review; 
d. To approve the round 2 savings proposals contained within the 
appendices and comment as appropriate 
e. To consider the Savings Programme Framework and Decision Making 
Framework and comment as appropriate. 

Page 10



HEALTH, SCHOOLS AND CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Wednesday, 13th March 2019

PRESENT:  Councillor Dutton (in the chair); Councillors Biant, Dale, Gartside, 
Hartley, Hornby, Susan Smith and Sullivan. 

OFFICERS:  M. Widdup (Director of Neighbourhoods), W. Meston (Public 
Health Directorate), N. Rogers (Head of Public Protection – Neighbourhoods 
Directorate) and P. Thompson (Resources Directorate)

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: one member of the public 

APOLOGIES
112 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Brosnan, 
Davidson and McCarthy.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
113 There were no declarations of interests.

GREATER MANCHESTER’S CLEAN AIR PLAN - TACKLING NITROGEN 
DIOXIDE EXCEEDANCES AT THE ROADSIDE - OUTLINE BUSINESS 
CASE
114 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Neighbourhoods 
which summarised the key features of Greater Manchester’s feasibility study 
and its Outline Business Case to reduce nitrogen dioxide exceedances in both 
the Rochdale Borough and across Greater Manchester in the shortest 
possible time. The Outline Business Case had been developed by Rochdale 
Borough Council collectively with all of the Greater Manchester local 
authorities and also with the Greater Manchester Combined Authority, and co-
ordinated by Transport for Greater Manchester in line with Government 
direction and guidance.

The Committee was advised that taking action on air quality was not optional. 
The severe and long lasting health implications of poor air quality as well as 
the legal obligations placed on Greater Manchester local authorities meant 
that authorities needed to act decisively and quickly to reduce harmful air 
pollutants, and nitrogen oxides in particular. Greater Manchester authorities in 
deciding to work together to respond to this vital issue were demonstrating 
collective leadership, which would be essential in helping to clean the air for 
the combined population of nearly three million residents.  Analysis revealed 
that locations of damaging roadside nitrogen dioxide concentrations could be 
found in every district.

It was noted that poor air quality is the largest environmental risk to the 
public’s health. Therefore taking action to improve air quality is crucial to 
improve population health. It was further noted that air quality, generally, is 
improving, particular pollutants remain a serious concern in many urban 

Page 11



areas. These are oxides of nitrogen and its harmful form nitrogen dioxide, and 
particulate matter.  

Across Greater Manchester road transport is responsible for approximately 
80% of nitrogen dioxide concentrations at roadside, of which diesel vehicles 
are the largest source. Long-term exposure to elevated levels of particulate 
matter and nitrogen dioxide may contribute to the development of 
cardiovascular or respiratory disease, and may reduce life expectancy. The 
youngest, the oldest, those living in areas of deprivation, and those with 
existing respiratory or cardiovascular disease are most likely to develop 
symptoms due to exposure to air pollution.

In considering the report Members sought clarification on the following:
a. Consultations with those most likely to be affected by the proposals 

such as the Borough’s licensed private hire and hackney carriage 
trades. The Director of Neighbourhoods reported that consultative 
meetings with the taxi/private hire trades regarding the proposals and 
the main issue raised related to concerns that vehicle owners would be 
unable to meet the required deadlines for vehicle emissions. The ‘trade’ 
had also requested that the deadlines be put back, by 12 months. 
However this was not possible as these deadlines had been 
established by the government.

b. The status of private hire and hackney carriage vehicles that are 
operate in the Rochdale Borough but which re licensed by other local 
authorities.

c.  The effectiveness of the computer software that would be used, in 
terms of its ability to differentiate between different types of vehicles

d. Measures being taken by authorities to encourage the use of electric 
vehicle and the possibility of planning regulations be used to encourage 
developers to install charging portals at new build developments to 
further encourage the use of such vehicles

e. Whether the Council’s Communications Team will be utilised to put 
across the positive benefits that the measures detailed in the report will 
yield.

f. The impact, if any, of Brexit.
g. Whether Highways England are supportive of the proposals.

The Committee was advised that the report would be submitted to the cabinet, 
at its meeting on 18th March 201, prior to consideration by the Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority.

The Director of Neighbourhoods undertook to present a report at a future 
meeting of the Committee updating members of developments in this regard.

Resolved:
1. That the Committee supports the proposals detailed in the report and 

recommends that the Cabinet, at its meeting on 18th March 2019 
concurs.

2. The Director of Neighbourhoods be requested to present a report at a 
future meeting of the Committee updating Members of developments.

Page 12



Page 13



JOINT SCRUTINY PANEL FOR PENNINE CARE (MENTAL HEALTH) 
TRUST

MINUTES OF MEETING
Thursday, 21st March 2019

PRESENT: Councillor McLaren (Oldham MBC) (in the Chair); Councillors 
Dale Rochdale Borough Council), Grimshaw and Walker (Bury MBC)

OFFICERS: P. Thompson (Governance and Committee Services – Rochdale 
Borough Council).

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: L. Bishop ( Trust Secretary - Pennine Care NHS 
Foundation Trust), C. Parker (Executive Director of Nursing, Healthcare 
Professionals and Quality Governance – Pennine Care NHS Foundation 
Trust), J. Crosby (Director of Strategy - Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust), 
N. Littler (Executive Director (Workforce) - Pennine Care NHS Foundation 
Trust) and D. Wallace (Communications and Engagement Advisor - Pennine 
Care NHS Foundation Trust),

APOLOGIES
29 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Gordon, Wright 
(Stockport MBC), Howard, Susan Smith (Rochdale Borough Council), Peet, 
Teresa Smith (Tameside MBC), Heffernan and Toor (Oldham MBC).

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
30 There were no declarations of interest. 

PUBLIC QUESTIONS
31 There were no questions asked by members of the public.

MINUTES
32 The Committee considered the minutes of its most recent meeting held 
24th January 2019.

Resolved:
That the Minutes of the meeting of the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee for Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust, held 24th January 2019, 
be approved as a correct record. 

MIXED SEX ACCOMMODATION
33 The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director of 
Nursing, Healthcare Professionals and Quality Governance which updated 
and advised of the next steps with regards to the Trust’s intention to meet 
statutory mixed sex accommodation (MSA) requirements. 

The regulatory requirements and expectations of the Trust were clearly 
outlined. The Trust’s 2016 CQC inspection report highlighted a failure to 
comply with the Department of Health guidance on single sex accommodation 
on older people and acute wards for working age adults. The report noted that 

Page 14

Agenda Item 6



the ‘trust was not effectively managing the risks of mixed sex 
accommodation.’ The recommendation was that ‘The Trust must ensure that 
all wards are compliant with the Department of Health guidance on same sex 
accommodation in order to ensure the safety, privacy and dignity of patients.’

The Trust’s recent CQC inspection report acknowledged there had been 
improvements in how the Trust had managed mixed sex accommodation. The 
CQC acknowledged that a consultation exercise was on going to assist the 
Trust in making future decisions about managing mixed sex wards.

Notwithstanding this recent positive feedback the CQC continued to remain 
interested in a number of sexual safety incidents that have occurred on PCFT 
in-patient wards. Therefore following the publication of ‘The state of mental 
health services 2014 to 2017’ and the CQCs report ‘Sexual Safety on mental 
health wards’ there has been a national commitment to eradicate dormitories 
on in-patient psychiatric wards. 

The engagement exercise, which was intended to explore attitudes among 
patients, staff, carers and other relevant stakeholders to moving from mixed to 
single sex accommodation on inpatient mental health wards had now 
concluded.  The Trust had formally received the outcome of the engagement 
exercise, a board development session was held on the 11th February 2019 
where the Lead Analyst provided detailed feedback on the content of the 
report to board members. It was also noted that a presentation, by the Lead 
Analyst, to Members of the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee had been 
given at their informal meeting on 26th February 2019.   

The engagement analyst’s report provided details of how the engagement had 
been undertaken and analysed and provided comprehensive details on the 
feedback and themes gathered through the process of the exercise. The key 
area for acknowledgment was the vast amount and wide variety of views 
gathered regarding the delivery of mixed sex accommodation which also 
meant that the report did not conclude with a consensus view. The report 
didn’t solely focus on MSA issues, as other related issues were highlighted 
and were captured through the engagement exercise that directly impacted on 
the safety, privacy and dignity of patients who were admitted to PCFT wards. 
These included: 

a. mixing patients with organic and functional illness
b. issues affecting LGBT patients
c. staffing levels (nursing, support worker and therapists): 
d. Staff attitudes/culture: 
e. Patient Choice: 
f. Location of hospital sites and wards 
g. Broader estates and Accommodation issues
h. Bathing and toilets facilities.  
i. Staff skills/ specialisms  
j. Bed management and bed allocation
k. Continuous Professional Development for staff

Page 15



l. Therapeutic engagement/ activities 

It was noted that after consideration of the evaluation report at the PCFT’s 
Board development session on 11th February 2019 and by this meeting of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee, the Executive Director of Nursing would, in 
collaboration with the Managing Director of mental health services and other 
senior colleagues within the Trust, lead the next phase of work with regards to 
the MSA agenda in order to support the Trust to meet the statutory 
requirements; including holding a detailed review of the engagement analysis 
and discussions with operational service leads, the gathering of further 
feedback following publication and presentation of the report and the 
development of a co-produced proposal for the Trust’s Board to consider 
which outlines the proposed approach to how the Trust should manage Mixed 
Sex Accommodation.

The Committee noted the developments that had been made in this regard 
and commended the work that had been carried out hitherto. The Committee 
asked if visits could be arranged for Members to view the Wards in question, 
at locations across the Trust’s footprint. 

Resolved: 
1. The report be noted
2. The Trust be requested to arrange visits for Members of the Joint 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee to view hospital wards across the 
Trust’s footprint. 

STAFFING AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY
34 The Trust’s Executive Director (Workforce) gave a presentation to the 
Committee regarding the Trust’s Staffing and Workforce Development 
Strategy. Pennine Care currently employed approximately 5,650 staff with a 
further 936 staff on their temporary bank which provide ad-hoc cover to fill 
gaps created either by sickness or vacancies.

The workforce comprised staff that worked with Mental Health/Learning 
Disability and Community Services across the Trust’s footprint. The current 
staff turnover rate for the Trust was 11.58%, which was within the `average’ 
range compared to other Mental Health/Learning Disability NHS Providers in 
the North of England. The Trust’s vacancy rate was currently 11.37%. Staff 
sickness rates were 5.66% which was above average, when compared to the 
Trust’s ‘peer group’.

The ‘harder to fill’ roles within Pennine Care mirrored the regional and national 
gaps in this regard, including: Medical Staff, newly qualified nursing roles 
(especially Band 5 level nurses in Mental Health services), walk-in centre staff 
and Health Visitors.

In terms of Brexit a risk assessment had been carried out into potential 
implications for the Trust’s workforce. It had been deemed that this presently 
warranted a `low risk’, based on the fact that only 1.8% of the Trust workforce 

Page 16



were, presently, non-UK EU nationals.  The Trust had monitored its leaver 
rates since 2016 and there had only been five non-UK EU nationals who have 
left the Trust’s employ in the last two years. 

It was though recognised that the national implications of Brexit may impact 
on the future supply chain for the wider NHS workforce which may impact on 
Pennine Care as other competitor organisations look at different pools for 
recruitment.

To address future workforce challenges the Trust’s Workforce Strategy had 
established areas of focus and action to address various challenges. The 
workforce strategy had been set against four key domains:

a. Effective and Sustainable Workforce – the Trust aimed to have the right 
numbers of staff, with the right skills in the right types of jobs in the right 
place to deliver effective and safe care, including a representative 
workforce that is flexible to meet challenging service requirements in 
the future.

b. Capable and Skilled People - all staff to be appropriately trained and 
have access to the most effective and efficient learning and 
development opportunities.

c. Effective Leadership – this includes valuing and supporting staff 
including leaders who can model the Trust’s core and key values and 
behaviours. Performance measures would be used to ensure the Trust 
is providing effective leadership.  

d. Health, Wellbeing and Staff Engagement – this includes the promotion 
of a healthy organisational culture where staff contribute to the delivery 
of organisational objectives and are able to demonstrate the Trust’s 
values.  These key areas are underpinned by an Equality, Diversity and 
Inclusion strategy.

The report considered also the transfer of Community services and the 
Committee was advised of the timeline in this regard:

i) North East Sector (Oldham, Bury and HMR Adults) – Salford Royal 
NHS Trust Board is due to consider the business case for transfer 
towards the end of April 2019. Following formal ratification, the TUPE 
consultation process will commence with effect from 1st May 2019 with 
a view to staff transferring 1st July 2019.

ii) Trafford – Manchester Foundation Trust Board is due to consider a 
business case for the transfer of services in May 2019.  Following 
formal ratification, the TUPE consultation process will commence with a 
view to staff transferring on 1st October 2019.

The transfer will affect those staff working directly in the clinical services within 
the community along with a number of corporate staff who provide support 
into the community services.

Page 17



A detailed action plan and performance report have been developed to 
monitor progress and impact.  The Trust’s People and Workforce Committee 
have oversight of the workforce strategy implementation.

FINANCE UPDATE
35 The Trust’s Director of Finance updated the Committee on the Mental 
Health Investment Standard (MHIS), which was previously known as Parity of 
Esteem (PoE) and was the requirement for Clinical Commissioning Groups 
(CCG) to increase investment in Mental Health services in line with their 
overall increase in allocation each year.

CCG’s are required to increase their investment in mental health services by 
the same proportion that their allocations have increased plus an additional 
1% for mental health (on average this equated to between 5.7% and 6.5%). 
CCG Plans had to be reviewed by the Greater Manchester Health and Social 
Care Partnership and a nominated mental health provider. CCG MHIS Plans 
must then be independently audited and signed off by CCG Governing 
Bodies. MHIS Plans were required to demonstrate a higher proportionate 
increase in investment into Children’s and Young Peoples Mental Health 
services.

The deadline for the submission of the CCG/Providers Final Plan was 4th April 
2019 and the deadline for the submission of the System Plans was 11th April 
2019.

Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee considered the proposals 
in detail and the Officers were asked for clarification as to ‘niche services’ 
which were aimed at achieving sustainable and effective mental health 
services.

Resolved:
1. The report be noted
2. The Trust’s Director of Finance be requested to present a report to the 

Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s next meeting regarding Niche 
Services.

DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS
36 Resolved:
It was noted that the current Chair of the Committee was to meet with the 
Chair, Chief Executive and Secretary to the Trust’s Board on Tuesday, 23rd 
April 2019 to discuss: the Committee’s draft work programme for 2019/2020; 
an exploration of joint working with the Trust’s Governors and potential 
meeting dates for 2019/2020.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
37 Decision:
That the Press and Public be excluded from the meeting during consideration 
of the following item of business, in accordance with the provisions of Section 
100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended.

Page 18



Reason for Decision:
Should the press and public remain during the following item of business as 
there may be a disclosure of information that is deemed to be exempt under 
Part 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

CQC IMPROVEMENT PLAN
38 The Trust’s Director of Strategy reminded the Committee that the Care 
Quality Commission (CQC) had undertaken a ‘Well Led’ inspection of a 
selection of services provided by the Trust in the period August – October 
2018. Some of the services inspected included dentistry, mental health 
hospital wards (for adults and for older people), PICU, home treatment teams, 
136 suites access and crisis services and walk-in centres across the Trust.

The CQC’s report had been presented to the Trust’s Directors in December 
2018 with an overall ‘requires improvement’ rating, although it was 
acknowledged that many individual services were improving. 

Further to the findings of the CQC inspection the Trust is required to submit a 
revised and updated Improvement Plan to the CQC. Each and every action 
contained therein will have both a ‘lead’ and an ‘Executive’ sponsor. There 
was to be regular updates and monitoring of the Improvement Plan to ensure 
a full and timely implementation. The Improvement Plan was to be shared with 
the Trust’s key stakeholders including: the various CCG’s across the Trust’s 
footprint, NHS England, this Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the 
local HealthWatch organisations across the Trust’s footprint, following its 
consideration, and formal approval, by the Trust’s Board at its meeting on 27th 
March 2019. 

The Trust had entered into a pathway that was designed to assist NHS bodies 
receive ‘good’ CQC inspection reports, entitled: ‘Moving to Good’. To assist in 
the process Pennine Care had been ‘paired’ with a Trust that was already 
achieved a ‘good’ rating: Weardale in County Durham.

Resolved:
1. That the report be noted.
2. A copy of the Trust’s Improvement Plan be forwarded to Members of 

the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee for Pennine Care. 

Page 19



                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Meeting of:

Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee for Pennine Acute 
Hospitals NHS Trust

Date:  15th January 2019

Present:
Councillor Roy Walker (Bury Council)
Councillor Stella Smith (Bury Council)
Councillor Colin McLaren (Oldham Council)
Councillor Derek Heffernan (Oldham MBC)
Councillor Raymond Dutton (Rochdale MBC)
Councillor Gavin McGill (Bury Council) 

Jon Rouse, Chief Officer Greater Manchester Health &Social Care 
Partnership
Nicky Tamanis: Deputy Chief Finance Officer, Salford Royal and 
Pennine Acute
Jo Purcell: Deputy Director North East Sector
Andrew Lynn, Group Director of Communication & External Affairs
Barry Williams, External Partnership Manager

Apologies: Councillor Linda Robinson (Rochdale MBC), 
Councillor Ann Stott (Rochdale MBC), 
Councillor Norman Briggs (Oldham MBC)

PAT.18/19-23 APOLOGIES

Apologies were detailed above. 

PAT.18/19-24 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

PAT.18/19-25 PUBLIC QUESTIONS

There were no public questions.

PAT.18/19-26 MINUTES AND MATTERS ARISING

It was agreed:

That the minutes of the meetings held on 15th October 2018 be approved as a 
correct record.

Page 20

Agenda Item 7



2

Members resolved to re-arrange the agenda and consider the Finance and 
Recruitment & Workforce update items first.

PAT 18/19-27 FINANCE UPDATE

Nicky Tamanis, Deputy Director of Finance attended the meeting to provide 
members with a financial update.  The Deputy Director reported that a 5 year 
national funding settlement for NHS was announced in June 2018 with an additional 
£20.5 billion per annum by 2023/24.  With particular reference to 2019/20, the 
deputy director of finance reported that nationally:

 1 year tariff and planning round for 2019/20
 Phasing out of Control Totals
 National tariff uplift 3.8%
 Efficiency factor 1.1%
 CQUIN 1.25%
 New centralised procurement arrangements
 “Blended payments” approach for A&E and non-elective activity. Blend of 

block and activity based payments
 Refresh of Market Forces Factor for first time in 8 years
 Broader range of outpatient tariffs, including non-face to face and non-

consultant led

Locally, the Deputy Director of Finance reported that key priorities for the Trust will 
include, the development of the strategic/business cases for the acquisition of PAHT 
by MFT and SRFT and the impact of working within Greater Manchester.

Key issues for the Trust going forward will be the reduction of the deficit (currently 
£68.9 million), addressing the IT infrastructure, a backlog of estates work as well 
as reducing the reliance on the temporary workforce.

Those present were given the opportunity to make comments and ask questions 
and the following points were raised:

Members discussed the deficit.  The Deputy Chief Finance Officer reported that it is 
envisaged that the organisation would have a balanced budget within three years.  
Service delivery will always be the Trust’s priority.

Responding to a Member’s question, the Deputy Chief Finance Officer reported that 
there are a number of reasons for the large deficit; including problems with 
recruitment and retention, higher than average agency costs, structural issues as 
well as a failure to agree on a control total.

With regards to future budget planning the Deputy Chief Finance Officer reported 
that a one year budget for 2018/20 will be finalised shortly.

Responding to a question in respect of the newly introduced blended payments 
approach for A&E and the refresh of the Market Forces Factor, the Deputy Chief 
Finance Officer reported that this work was overdue.  The Deputy Chief Finance 

Page 21



3

Officer reported that she does not expect this to have a negative impact on the 
Trust’s finances.

The Deputy Chief Finance Officer reported that capital works would still be 
undertaken at the North Manchester site during this transitional period.  

Responding to a question from the Chair, the Deputy Chief Finance Officer reported 
that there has been improvements in the amounts of money spent on agency staff.  
This is as a result of recruitment from oversees of a number of medical staff, as 
well as an increase in the number of newly qualified nurses and the development of 
the workforce transformation programme.  The programme includes the 
development of a number of new roles to complement the traditional medical roles 
including nursing associates/technicians.

In response to a member’s question the Deputy Director North East Sector reported 
that she does not believe that the organisations across Greater Manchester will 
become one health organisation.

Responding to a Member’s question in respect of collecting monies for treatment 
from overseas visitors, the Deputy Chief Finance Officer reported that the Trust 
performs well in this area.

Councillor Roy Walker raised concerns that the transaction and the establishment of 
the Northern Care Alliance would result in the loss of the title Salford Royal 
Hospital, a strong brand with a reputation for outstanding health care provision.

It was agreed:

 The Deputy Chief Finance Officer be thanked for her attendance.
 Information be provided to the JHSOC in respect of monies re-couped for 

oversees patients.
 Once available a more detailed budget report would be considered at a future 

meeting of the JHOSC
 A briefing report in respect of the Trust’s IT Strategy will be considered at the 

next meeting of the JHOSC 
 An estates management report will be considered at the next meeting of the 

JHOSC.

PAT 18/19-28 RECRUITMENT, RETENTION & WORKFORCE UPDATE

In the absence of a representative from the Trust’s Human Resources Department, 
Jo Purcell: Deputy Director North East Sector presented an overview of the Trust’s 
current agency, sickness and turnover levels.

Members raised concerns in respect of challenges in reducing the amount spent on 
agency staff at the North Manchester General Hospital (NMGH) site as well the 
26.75% vacancy rates in medical and dental at NMGH and 17.91% at FGH. 

Page 22



4

It was agreed:

Recruitment, retention and workforce update will be a standing agenda item.
The Trust will provide further information in respect of the high vacancy rates in 
medical/dental across the Trust.

PAT 18/19-29 PENNINE ACUTE NHS TRUST (PAT) – TRANSACTION 
PROGRAMME UPDATE

Jon Rouse Chief Officer Greater Manchester Health &Social Care Partnership 
attended the meeting to provide an update with regards to the Pennine Acute 
Transaction.  

The Chief Officer reported that two legally separate but intrinsically linked 
processes (transactions) are underway to split PAT; both elements will require 
formal approval at national level.  Firstly NHS Improvement has invited Salford 
Royal to put forward proposals for the formal acquisition of the Royal Oldham, 
Fairfield General Hospital and Rochdale Infirmary hospital sites to be part of Salford 
Royal’s group of healthcare services, called the Northern Care Alliance NHS Group 
(NCA).  Secondly MFT will formally acquire the North Manchester General Hospital 
site to transfer to MFT as part of its group of hospitals. The future plans for NMGH 
is part of the longstanding plan to create a Single Hospital Service for the City of 
Manchester and Trafford, with involvement of Manchester City Council and MHCC.

Salford Royal has been running Pennine Acute Trust and its services under a 
management agreement since 2016/17 under the NCA group arrangements.  The 
NCA is governed by a Committees in Common where both Salford Royal and 
Pennine Acute NHS Trust Boards have devolved its decision making.

The Chief Officer outlined the planned benefits of the transfer which would include:  
• Integrated Health & Social Care models developed and delivered through 

partnership arrangements
• Minimising unwarranted variation in care 
• Optimising economies of scale and technology 
• To be the employer of choice that enables staff to realise their full potential 

so that recruitment, retention, productivity and staff satisfaction is 
maximized

The NCA will build on the successful integration of hospital and community-based 
services already at Salford (through a fully-formed Integrated Care Organisation 
ICO), and is partnering with local healthcare commissioners to further develop new 
‘joined up’ place-based approaches and models of health and social care  in Bury, 
Oldham and Rochdale 

The Chief Officer reported that the transaction will follow a two stage process, stage 
1, the submission of the strategic cases, once agreed the next stage will be 
submission of the full business cases.  All partner organisations involved are 

Page 23



5

committed to working through a series of complex processes in order to secure the 
best future for patients and staff.
 
The Chief Officer reported a new ownership and long-term management 
arrangement for the hospitals currently run by Pennine Acute Trust (PAT) is 
essential to support the future clinical, financial and workforce sustainability of 
acute hospital services in the North East sector and across Greater Manchester. 

Responding to a Member’s question, the Chief Officer reported that as the 
transaction progresses essential maintenance works will still need to be undertaken 
at NMGH. 

With regards to work undertaken in respect of separating clinical services following 
the transaction, the Chief Officer reported that it is essential that the right services 
are situated on the right site.  This will not only have implications for patient 
flows/pathways but also for the workforce and IT. 

Members discussed whether the large deficit at the PAT could affect the transaction.  
The Chief Officer reported that external support has been provided to identify what 
is driving the deficit at the Trust. 

The Chief Officer reported that it is critical for the future sustainability of the Trust 
that demand pressure is reduced.  Across the North east sector locality working is 
less well developed in Bury and Oldham. 

Members discussed communication with staff, stakeholders and the public in 
respect of the transaction.  The Chief Officer reported that communication with staff 
is ongoing however wider communication will not be undertaken until the business 
case is agreed.  

It was agreed:

A further update in respect of the Transaction will be presented at the JHSOC for 
Pennine Acute in July.

PAT 18/19-30 URGENT BUSINESS

There was no urgent business reported.

Page 24



Report to Cabinet

Date of Meeting 28th May 2019
Portfolio Children’s Services
Report Author Fay Davies
Public/Private Document Public

Site for New Special School

Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

1.3

A bid was submitted from the authority to the DfE for a centrally funded new 
Special School. The authority has been notified of the successful outcome 
and the DfE Free School Directorate want to discuss Heads of Term on the 
proposed disposal  of land for the site of the new school.
 
At a previous meeting of the Informal Cabinet on the 5th Feb 2019 Members 
of the Cabinet were asked for their views on the short list of possible sites 
named for the school. 

Feedback from Members showed that a new special school on the site of 
Heywood Sports Village, in an area of currently unused because of sub-
surface rubble, was the preferred option.

Recommendation

2.1

2.2

2.3

That Cabinet approves, in principle, to the disposal  of a parcel of land at 
Heywood Sports Village, this would be by way of a 125 year lease, as its 
preferred option for a new Special Free school, subject to the agreement of 
Sport England as a statutory consultee on the development process and 
subject to all necessary due diligence being undertaken to ensure the site is 
fit for the purpose of a Special Free School. 

That Cabinet approves, in principle, to the disposal  of the alternative site at 
Bullough Moor playing fields, by way of a 125 year lease, in the event that 
Sport England is unwilling to support the site at Heywood Sports Village. 
This would be subject to all necessary due diligence being undertaken to 
ensure the site is fit for the purpose of a Special Free School. If this option is 
chosen members should note that the current community playing fields 
would also need to be shared with Woodlands Primary School. 

Page 25

Agenda Item 8



2.4

2.5

That Cabinet delegates authority to the Assistant Director - Resources 
(Legal, Governance and Workforce) to carry out the necessary legal due 
diligence on the preferred site and, if necessary, on the alternative site.

That Cabinet delegates authority to the Director of Economy to negotiate the 
Heads of Term for the disposal of the preferred site or, if necessary, the 
alternative site.

That Cabinet notes that a further report will be submitted once the due 
diligence exercise has been completed and the proposed Heads of Term 
have been negotiated.   

Reason for Recommendation

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

A site of approximately 1 to 1.4 Hectares is needed for a Special School 
Site.
Special Schools in particular need additional parking and direct drop off 
access to give a door to door service to some of its most vulnerable children.

An initial list of 21 possible sites was drawn up and discussed with Estates 
and Planning within the council.

A list of 5 sites was presented to informal Cabinet on the 5th February 2019 
and Members were asked their views.

Feedback from Members showed that a new special school on the site of 
Heywood Sports Village, in an area that is currently unused because of sub-
surface rubble, and identified in the Playing Pitch Strategy as having the 
potential to be released for development, was the preferred option.

As a statutory consultee to any planning application on the Heywood Sports 
Village site, Sport England has been asked for pre-application advice and 
has concluded that they would have no objection to the release of this land, 
for a new autism school, subject to mitigation for the loss of the playing field 
land. An appropriate level of mitigation for any playing field loss will be 
discussed with Link4Life, the Football Foundation and Sport England, being 
mindful of issues highlighted within the boroughs Playing Pitch Strategy.  
The appropriate mitigation will need to be agreed prior to the submission of 
the planning application and form part of the proposals.

A new Special School, for the 11 to 19 age group, is desperately required as 
Redwood Special School is full, despite having been extended. Numbers of 
children having to attend Independent and Non-maintained special schools 
out of borough is large and rising. Costs for these out of borough 
placements are a significant and rising portion of the High Needs school 
budget.

Key Points for Consideration

Page 26



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

The government announced the opening of a new bidding round for 
approximately 30 centrally funded new alternative provision and special 
schools on the 24th July 2018. Local authorities were asked to put cases 
together to submit as expressions of interest for the government to then 
allocate. Rochdale Council had submitted a bid to a previous bidding round 
which had been unsuccessful. That bid had been developed with 
consultation with stakeholders and community groups. The current SEND 
strategy and separate Autism strategy, which has also been developed 
through stakeholder engagement, also states the council needs  additional 
school capacity for Autistic children in the borough. The school, if approved 
would provide 75 additional places.

The government special school bidding round closed on the 15th October 
2018. The list of authorities that applied is on the government website. On 
the 16th December 2018 the Education Secretary announced he will 
“approve all high quality bids in the current round of special and alternative 
provision free schools applications”. 

Rochdale has had formal notification on the success of its application and  
has been notified that it will be required to start negotiating Heads of Terms 
with the DfE Free School Directorate with regards to the disposal of the 
preferred site.

The timeline for the delivery  of the new Special school is as follows:-

October 2018 – Submission of bid by LA to the Department for Education for 
a new Special School

March 2019 – Notification of success of Rochdale’s bid

April 2019 – Pre-application registration opened for academy trusts to notify 
the DfE of their intention to apply to run the new school

September 30th 2019 – Deadline for submission of the academy trust 
application to the DfE to run the new school

Winter 2019/20 – DfE notification of approved applications

Pre-Opening phase (Phase 1) – Funding agreement signed by the Secretary 
of State to the academy trust. Education and Skills Funding Agency (EFSA) 
confirms suitable site can be delivered in timescales and represents value 
for money. Provisional opening date agreed.

Phase 2 (approximately 6 months) - Confirm technical feasibility of site, 
including planning.

Phase 3 (approximately 18 months) - Procure construction works and ICT 
and build school.

Alternatives Considered

Page 27



4.5

4.6

Alternative sites were examined and the two sites named above were 
chosen on the basis these best meet the specific criteria for the school. 

Projections of financial costs of out of borough Independent and non-
maintained placements show, that without the new school and with the 
projected pupil populations, the estimated costs of these placements will 
increase from 8% of the High Needs budget to 20% of the budget within 8 
years.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1

5.2

5.3

If the bid is successful costs for building the new special school will be met 
from direct funding from the Department for Education.

Costs for commissioning of the new school places will be met through the 
High Needs Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG).

There will be an opportunity cost  associated with using either of the named 
sites for the school (Bullough Moor playing fields or Heywood Sports 
Village). This could be loss of rental income or the potential unrealised 
income from the loss of a capital receipt.

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

The application of pupil place planning arrangements contributes to the 
Council Business Plan in ensuring an effective allocation process for 
school admissions. The council has a statutory duty to offer a special 
school place to any child with an EHCP plan that requires it.

The Council has the power under s123 of the Local Government Act 1972 
to dispose of its land in any way it thinks fit, provided that disposal is for the 
best consideration that can be reasonably obtained.

Consent of the Secretary of State is required if the market value of the land 
and the consideration accepted is more than £2m. In this instance it is 
proposed that the lease will be granted at a peppercorn rent with no 
premium payable. Therefore, if the difference between the value and the 
consideration accepted (peppercorn rent) falls within the permitted 
threshold then the land can be disposed under the general consent.

Negotiations in respect of the Heads of Terms will be undertaken with the 
proviso that it is subject to final Cabinet approval once all the usual due 
diligence checks and other investigations have been completed and to 
satisfactory outcome being agreed with the DfE. 

There would also be a requirement to alter the use of the land for School 
purposes. Any new building on either  site would have to go through a full 
planning permission consultation process. Disposal of either site would be 
conditional upon satisfactory planning permission being obtained.

Page 28



Consultation

7. The new school building will be required to go through a full planning 
consultation exercise.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. none

For Further Information Contact: Fay Davies
fay.davies@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 29



Report to Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting MeetingDateLegal
Portfolio Cabinet Member for Adult 

Care, Cabinet Member for 
Children's Services

Report Author Carolyn Whitham
Public/Private Document Public

3rd & 4th Quarter Social Care Complaints

Executive Summary

1. The report provides Members with a summary of Adult and Children’s Social 
Care complaints and compliments received during the second half of 2018/19.

Recommendation

2. It is recommended that Members of the Committee consider and scrutinise the 
information contained in the report and assess whether further information or 
explanation is required regarding any of the issues raised in the report.

Reason for Recommendation

3. Part of the Council’s performance management process is to ensure the
Authority’s ambition to continuously improve services is realised, and actions 
or decisions may need to be taken to maintain improvement.

Key Points for Consideration

4. Appendix 1 to the report provides a brief commentary relating to complaints 
dealt with under the relevant complaints procedure by Adult Social Care and 
Children’s Social Care Services during the 3rd and 4th quarters of 2018/19. 

Appendix 1 also includes examples of how an individual complaint has been 
dealt with from receipt to resolution as requested by Members at a previous 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting.

Appendix 2 provides details of complaints in graph form.  The format of the 
report includes information on trends, and the graphs display trend analysis 
for each quarter in the reporting period.  

Adult Social Care complaint figures will also include details of any complaints 
regarding financial assessments received during the reporting period.  This is 
a function carried out by the Revenues and Benefits Service.  

The Customer Feedback Team are working with services to improve the 
Page 30

Agenda Item 9



4.1

quality of information recorded, and to ensure lessons are being learnt from 
complaints and action taken is recorded and reported.  

To improve complaints monitoring, the Customer Feedback Team also 
provides weekly status reports to Assistant Directors to enable closer 
monitoring of current complaints.  

Alternatives Considered

None.  Information has been compiled from the complaints recording system 
which is used to record complaints and compliments received by social care 
services.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. Appropriate financial redress was made to carers following the outcome of a 
Children’s Social Care complaint which determined that the carers were 
entitled to be paid under the fostering regulations.

Complaints considered at stage two or stage three of the Children’s Social 
Care complaints procedure have financial implications due to the statutory 
requirement to appoint an external Independent Person and in some cases an 
external Investigating Officer at stage two, and three independent people to sit 
on a Review Panel at stage three. All costs associated with Children’s Social 
Care complaints incurred throughout the year are included in the Children’s 
Social Care Annual Complaints Report.

Risk and Policy Implications

There are no specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this 
report.

Complainants have the opportunity to refer their complaint to the Local 
Government & Social Care Ombudsman for up to twelve months from 
completion of the Council’s complaints process; therefore there is a risk that 
the outcome of a future Ombudsman investigation into a complaint may result 
in a recommended financial remedy.  Complaints considered by the 
Ombudsman are reported to Overview and Scrutiny Committee annually on 
receipt of the Ombudsman’s annual report.

6.

Consultation

7. Not applicable.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. None

For Further Information Contact: Carolyn Whitham, Tel: 01706 923508, 
carolyn.whitham@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 31



1

Appendix 1
Complaint Statistics

Adult Social Care

In June 2007 the Department of Health provided a set of proposals to unify and 
reform the current arrangements for making complaints across Health and Adult 
Social Care; ‘Making Experiences Count.’ As well as fulfilling the commitment in 'Our 
Health, Our Care, Our Say', it proposed a radical new approach to complaints 
handling which is more flexible and supports organisational learning. 
The formalised guidance for the new arrangements was published on 25 February 
2009; ‘Listening, Responding, Improving’ and the Regulations were laid before 
Parliament on 27 February 2009 for councils and health organisations to implement 
from 1 April 2009. 
These Regulations enshrine a duty to co-operate with health partners in relation to 
complaints that cut across Health and Social Care Services.
The Council introduced a joint complaints process for dealing with Health and Adult 
social care complaints from 1 April 2009.  It relates to concerns received from this 
date onwards and is in line with the Making Experiences Count initiative.  
Where a complaint is received about Adult Social Care Services functions or functions 
of any party to the Joint Protocol (i.e. Health Partners) the organisation which 
receives the complaint handles the co-ordination of the complaint.   
The process for dealing with Adult Social Care complaints is a one stage process.  If 
the complainant remains dissatisfied with the outcome of their complaint they may 
refer their concerns for consideration by the Local Government & Social Care 
Ombudsman.
Not all complaints received by Adult Care are eligible to be considered under the 
statutory procedure, and where a complaint does not meet the criteria, it will be 
considered under the Council’s Corporate Complaints Procedure.  Details of Adult 
Care complaints considered under both procedures will be included in this report.
15 new complaints were received by Adult Care Services during the second half of 
2018-19.  Details of these complaints and their outcomes can be found below.

The types of complaints received

6 new complaints were received during the third quarter 

4 complaints were partially upheld:
 Delays in personal budget being arranged (Joint complaint with Health)
 Notification that Carer’s Support would no longer be provided
 Planned reassessment of service user’s needs
 Lack of support regarding concerns raised about care home

2 complaints were not upheld.

9 new complaint was received during the fourth quarter 

1 complaint was upheld:
 Correspondence received regarding property disregard for care home fees

Page 32

http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Managingyourorganisation/Legalandcontractual/Complaintspolicy/MakingExperiencesCount/index.htm
http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Publicationsandstatistics/Publications/PublicationsPolicyAndGuidance/DH_095408
http://www.opsi.gov.uk/si/si2009/uksi_20090309_en_1


2

Appendix 1
4 complaints were partially upheld:

 Lack of family support from Social Worker following death of service user
 Delay in adaptations to property
 Involvement of Social Worker when complainant was sectioned
 Decision regarding suitable care placement for service user

3 complaints were not upheld.

1 complaint is still ongoing.

Examples of Action Taken and Lessons Learned

Third Quarter

In response to the joint complaint with Health regarding delays in a personal budget 
being arranged, all staff within CMHT were reminded that a mental capacity 
assessment should be undertaken where there are grounds to do so.  All assessment 
staff within CMHT to complete training in relation to the Mental Capacity Act 2015 and 
a record of staff who have completed the training will be maintained.  

Further to the complaint regarding carer’s support no longer being provided, the 
service arranged for the complainant to be provided with support in completing a 
further carer's assessment to provide the opportunity to discuss their needs as a carer 
and the outcomes they wish to achieve.

In response to the complaint regarding lack of support for concerns raised about a 
care home, the Commissioning Team completed a quality visit and discussed details 
with the complainant.  

Fourth Quarter

An apology was provided in response to the complaint regarding property disregard 
for care home fees.  The service considered the information provided by the 
complainant and accepted the property was the not complainant’s residence and that 
there were extenuating circumstances in this case.

In response to the partially upheld complaint regarding a lack of support following the 
death of a service user an apology was given to the family and a number of 
recommendations were implemented:
 The service will ensure that more timely advice on the pathway for registering a 

death is available whereby initial call takers have information at hand to the 
electronic link to registry.office@rochdale.gov.uk 'registering a death'.  

 Initial call takers will not only have access to place a voicemail message on a 
practitioner's landline and make a record on the social care file requesting a return 
call, but where possible will also have the option of leaving a message on the 
practitioner's work mobile phone.

 To ensure a more timely response to potential executors of Estates, information 
regarding the pathway on applying for Probate and Letters of Administration will 
be available immediately in both verbal and written format.

Following the partially upheld complaint regarding a delay in adaptations to a service 
user’s property a number of recommendations were implemented:

Page 33



3

Appendix 1
 Following an initial feasibility visit for a non-complex/standard adaptations, the 

Technical Officer/Surveyor will compile a comprehensive typed written report 
detailing the survey and possible options which will be placed in the electronic file.

 In situations where a Technical Officer is leaving in a planned way, a handover 
meeting must take place between both Technical Officers.  If this is not possible, 
due to no other Technical Officers having capacity at that time, the handover must 
take place between the Technical Officer and Team Manager and should be 
documented, to enable the Team Manager to provide a full history and hand over 
details at the point the case is allocated to a new Technical Officer.

 All adaptations cases will be reviewed by a Manager on a monthly basis and if no 
actions have taken place, it will be followed up in supervision with the Technical 
Officer.

 Service users should be contacted by staff from the HIA with an update as a 
minimum of once per month, regardless of whether any action has taken place.

Timescales

There is no statutory timescale for dealing with Adult Social Care complaints, and the 
timescale is agreed between the Investigator and the complainant in each case.  
However, the aim is to complete investigations within 25 working days. The average 
time taken to deal with Adult Care complaints closed during the second half of 2018-
19 was 21.7 working days which was well within target.  

Complaint Example

The following is an example of a how an Adult Social Care complaint has been dealt 
with from receipt to resolution.

Complaint

A complaint was received via email to the Customer Feedback Team from the parent 
of a disabled young person.  The concerns related to a delay in agreed adaptations to 
the complainant’s property being completed and poor communication throughout the 
process.  An acknowledgement was sent to the complainant and the complaint was 
passed to the Head of Service to be allocated for investigation.

The Head of Service confirmed that she would be investigating the complaint and 
contacted the complainant to arrange a meeting to discuss their concerns and 
formulate an action plan. A timescale for completion of the investigation was agreed 
with the complainant, and a copy of the action plan was provided and agreed. 

An investigation was undertaken into the issues raised, which included interviewing 
staff and reviewing information held on the case file.   

The investigation was completed within the timescale agreed with the complainant, 
and the overall finding was that the complaint was partially upheld.  

A report was produced detailing the findings of the investigation and the actions taken 
as a result of the complaint.  A copy of the report was provided to the complainant 
together with a covering letter which included an apology for the points of complaint 
that were upheld.  The complainant was thanked for raising the issues and providing 
the opportunity for recommendations to be made for service improvement. 

Page 34



4

Appendix 1
A number of recommendations were made following the investigation details of which 
are included under ‘Lessons Learned’ above.

Compliments

Compliments received from service users are also recorded and shared with staff.  A 
total of 27 compliments were recorded for Adult Care Services during this reporting 
period, a breakdown and examples of which can be found below.

Team/Service Area No. Compliment received from
STARS 16 Service User (10)

Relative of Service User (6)
STARS Plus Team 2 Service User (2)

Community Restart Team 2 Service User (1)
Relative of Service User (1)

East & Pennine Neighbourhood Team 2 Relative of Service user (1)
Professional (1)

Transfer of Care Team 1 Relative of Service User 

Occupational Therapy 1 Service User

Heywood & Rochdale West 
Neighbourhood Team

1 Friend of Service User

Young Adults Team 1 Professional

RBSAB 1 Professional 

Social Worker from CMHT was highly complementary of the good work supporting the 
service user and stated “they have been fantastic at Restart, really done well for the 
service user”.  
Compliment for Community Restart Team

“My wife and I offer our sincere thanks to Rochdale Council for amazing visits from 
STARS to each of us in turn on being discharged from hospital.  Apart from medical 
matters nothing was too much trouble from helping prepare our food to assisting at 
bedtime.  Special needs were a welcome change.  My wife and I would look forward 
to visits including time chatting.  I must mention the OT staff who provided physical 
aids and thereby assisting in our daily lives.  We cannot thank Rochdale Council 
enough for arranging this service in our time of need.”
Compliment for STARS & OT Team 

“I am writing this little note on behalf of my friend.  She wishes she could do it herself 
to let you know what a lovely impression you made on her on your visit.  She wants 
you to know how she felt when you spoke to her, you made her day.  You are one 
special person and anyone you see will be very lucky.”
Compliment for Heywood & Rochdale West Neighbourhood Team

“I will never forget the kindness, respect and dignity you have all given me.  You gave 
me so much more than any medication could and most of all the friendship.”
Compliment for STARS Plus Team

Page 35



5

Appendix 1

“The social worker has recently been involved in my Auntie’s discharge from hospital. 
I found her to be very professional in her job, she was informative, caring and 
extremely efficient. Nothing was too much trouble for her and she helped to fully 
understand the next stages of my auntie’s care. I would just like to thank her and 
yourselves for running such an efficient and caring service.”
Compliment for Transfer of Care Team

Page 36



6

Appendix 1
Children’s Social Care

Changes were made to the children’s social services representations procedure as a 
result of the Children (Leaving Care) Act 2000, Adoption and Children Act 2002 and 
the Health and Social Care (Community Health and Standards) Act 2003.

Complaints are dealt with in accordance with The Children Act 1989 Representations 
Procedure (England) Regulations 2006. 

The handling and consideration of complaints under this procedure consists of three 
stages: 
Stage 1 - Local Resolution
Stage 2 - Investigation 
Stage 3 - Review Panel 

Local Resolution requires the local authority to resolve a complaint as close to the 
point of contact with the child or young person as possible (i.e. through front line 
management of the service). In doing so the local authority should consider the 
wishes of the complainant about how the complaint should be dealt with. In most 
circumstances complaints should be considered at Stage 1 in the first instance.

Consideration of complaints at Stage 2 is normally achieved through an investigation 
conducted by an investigating officer and an independent person. Stage 2 
commences either when the complainant requests it after an investigation at Stage 1, 
or where the complainant and the local authority have agreed that Stage 1 is not 
appropriate.

Where Stage 2 of the complaints procedure has been concluded and the complainant 
is still dissatisfied, he/she will be eligible to request further consideration of the 
complaint by a Review Panel. It is not possible to review a complaint that has not yet 
been fully considered at Stage 2 (including providing the reports and adjudication to 
the complainant). 

Following the conclusion of all three stages of the complaints process, if the 
complainant remains dissatisfied with the outcome of their complaint they may refer 
their concerns for consideration by the Local Government & Social Care 
Ombudsman.
Information relating to Children’s Social Care complaints is available on the Council’s 
website, and leaflets providing full details of the complaints process and how to raise 
concerns are provided as required.  Advocacy Focus provide an advocacy service 
and complaints information specifically for children in care.
Not all complaints received by Children’s Social Care are eligible to be considered 
under the statutory procedure, and where a complaint does not meet the criteria, it will 
be considered under the Council’s Corporate Complaints Procedure.  Details of 
complaints considered under both procedures will be included in this report.  
A total of 26 new complaints were received by Children’s Services in the second half 
of 2018-19, 18 of which were dealt with under the statutory Children’s Social Care 
complaints procedure.  5 complaints were dealt with under the Corporate Complaints 
Procedure, 1 complaint was out of scope as it was dealt with under GDPR procedures 
and 2 complaints were subsequently withdrawn.

Page 37



7

Appendix 1
The number of complaints received increased during the second half of 2018-19, 
which is a similar pattern to the previous year. However, of the 26 complaints 
received in this reporting period only 4 were fully upheld and 9 were partially upheld.  

Details of the complaints and their outcomes can be found below.

The types of complaints received

13 new complaints were received during the third quarter 

12 new complaints were considered at stage one

2 complaints were upheld:
 Delay in later life letters & story books being provided for adopted children
 Delay in Social Worker being allocated to child with disabilities

7 complaints were partially upheld:
 Lack of support for Foster Carer
 Management of safeguarding investigation involving complainant’s daughter
 Comments made by Social Worker and issues regarding contact arrangements
 CSC involvement when child was taken into care
 Various issues relating to communication and contact with child in care
 Comments by Home to School Transport Assistant (Corporate complaint)
 Lack of support & response from SEN Team (Corporate complaint)

2 complaints were not upheld.

1 complaint was subsequently withdrawn (Corporate complaint)

1 new complaint was received at stage two

Due to the amount of previous correspondence with the complainant a decision was 
taken for the complaint to be investigated directly at stage two.

The investigation into this complaint is still ongoing.

13 new complaints were received during the fourth quarter 

13 new complaints were considered at stage one

2 complaints were upheld:
 1 Level of financial support for friends & family carers
 1 Proposal to end EHC Plan for complainant’s son (corporate complaint)

2 complaints were partially upheld:
 1 Handling of Child Protection case and content of report
 1 Unprofessional comments made by Social Worker

6 complaints were not upheld (including 2 corporate complaints).

1 complaint is still ongoing.

Page 38



8

Appendix 1
1 complaint was subsequently withdrawn.

1 complaint was out of scope of the complaints procedure as it related to a data 
breach and was dealt with under GDPR procedures.

Examples of Action Taken and Lessons Learned

Third Quarter

Further to the complaint regarding a delay in later life letters and story books being 
provided to adopted children an apology was given to the parents that these had not 
been received. The Practice Manager explained that work on the life story books had 
commenced however the Social Worker was waiting for further information.  The 
Practice Manager agreed to undertake completion of the later life letters and the 
additional information for the life story work to ensure that these are provided as soon 
as possible.
  
An apology was given for the delay in a Social Worker from the Children with 
Disabilities Service being allocated.  The investigation established that unfortunately 
the complainant had experienced difficulties when trying to make contact with the 
Duty Social Worker.  The Investigating Officer raised this as an issue to be addressed 
with both the Team Manager and the Business Support Team.   A Social Worker was 
subsequently allocated.

In response to the partially upheld complaint from a parent regarding management of 
a safeguarding investigation, an apology was given that the complainant felt 
dissatisfied with the intervention from CSC.  The Investigating Officer recommended 
that a meeting should be reconvened to determine whether the amendments 
suggested by the complainant could be incorporated into the assessment.  

Fourth Quarter

Following the corporate complaint regarding the ending of an EHC Plan, the Head of 
Service met with the complainant and the proposal to end the plan was cancelled.  
The budgets were arranged and the Head of Service is working with the family on a 
"business as usual" basis.  The EHCP officer was asked to update the young 
person`s current plan with the additional information gained at a recent review and for 
smart targets to be set within it.

Further to the partially upheld complaint regarding the handling of a Child Protection 
case and content of a report, the Investigating Officer met with the complainants to 
discuss their concerns and arranged for a copy of the pre-birth assessments to be 
provided as they had requested.  The wording on the case records was also amended 
to reflect the current concerns.

In response to the partially upheld complaint regarding the actions of a Social Worker, 
the Investigating Officer met with the complainant to discuss their concerns.  The 
complaint was also discussed with the Team Manager and the Social Worker was 
spoken to with regards to using inappropriate language.  An apology was given to the 
complainant for any offence caused.  

Page 39



9

Appendix 1
Timescales

There are statutory timescales for dealing with Children’s Social Care complaints at 
each stage of the process.  Every attempt is made to resolve complaints within the 
initial timescale; however, the regulations allow the timescale for each stage to be 
extended in consultation with the complainant.

Stage 1 10 working days (can be extended to up to a maximum of 20 working 
days)

Stage 2 25 working days (can be extended up to a maximum of 65 working 
days)

Stage 3 Acknowledgement within 2 working days, review to be held within 30 
working days.

17 of the complaints received during the third and fourth quarters were dealt with 
under the statutory Social Care complaints procedure at stage one, 13 of which were 
responded to within the statutory timescale.  One of the complaints dealt with outside 
of the statutory timescale was responded to within an extended timescale agreed with 
the complainant.   Of the 6 corporate complaints received, 2 were dealt with within 
timescale.

Complaint Example

The following is an example of a how a Children’s Social Care complaint has been 
dealt with from receipt to resolution.

Stage one complaint

A formal complaint was received via email to the Director of Children’s Services 
regarding the service received from Children’s Social Care.  The complaint related to 
the handling of a child protection case and was allocated to the Head of Service for 
investigation.  A copy of the complaint was also passed to the Customer Feedback 
Team to be registered as a formal complaint and an acknowledgement was sent to 
the complainants explaining the complaints process.  

The Head of Service met with the complainants to discuss and clarify the key points 
for investigation and a timescale was agreed for providing the response.  The Practice 
Manager was also present in the meeting.  Following the meeting the complainants 
provided a further point of complaint for inclusion in the statement of complaint.

A full investigation was undertaken into the points raised, which included meeting with 
relevant practitioners and reviewing information recorded on the case file.

On completion of the investigation a written response was provided which addressed 
each of the concerns raised.  Only one point of complaint was upheld relating to a 
copy of assessments not being provided, giving an overall finding of the complaint 
being partially upheld.   The Investigating Officer also provided the complainants with 
a copy of the assessments to which they were entitled. The complaint was resolved at 
this stage.

Compliments

Page 40



10

Appendix 1
Compliments received from service users are also recorded and shared with staff.  17 
compliments were recorded for Children’s Social Care Services during the second 
half of 2018-19, a breakdown and examples of which can be found below.

“I went to Hollingworth today for a meeting with the Education Psychologist. I just 
wanted to tell you (although I’m sure you already know) she is wonderful! She really is 
like a lifeline and I can’t thank her enough, I actually don’t know where we’d be 
without her input. Thought it was important to pass on some good feedback – 
Rochdale are lucky to have her.”
Compliment for Educational Psychology Team

“We can't begin to thank you enough for your kindness, patience, understanding and 
empathy.  You helped us through an extremely difficult time and explained things 
clearly.  We are absolutely certain that had it not been for you things would not have 
gone so smoothly for ourselves and the children.  So from the bottom of our hearts 
thank you so much.”
Compliment for First Response Team

“The Judge went out of her way to express her gratitude to you for the work you had 
undertaken on the case, especially in relation to the care plan which she said was a 
nuanced and comprehensive document.  She was keen that you remain the social 
worker and praised you for your work in the case.  This praise was echoed by the 
Guardian following the hearing.  Well done and well deserved.”
Compliment for Child Protection and Court Team  

“The Occupational Therapist was great. They helped me a lot and they were really 
nice.”
Compliment for Occupational Therapy Team

“I just wanted to say that in 15 years I have never seen a relationship and interaction 
between a social worker & young person like yours & the young person’s yesterday in 
the meeting. He is clearly very comfortable with you and you know him well, it was 
lovely to observe.”   
Compliment for Children in Care Team

Team/Service Area No. Compliment received from
CP & Court Proceedings 7 Professional (5)

Guardian (2)
First Response Team 2 Parent (1)

Grandparent (1)
EHCP Team 2 Parent (2)

RANS 2 Professional (2)

Cared for Children 1 Professional

RBSCB 1 Professional

Educational Psychologist 1 Parent

Occupational Therapy 1 Parent

Page 41



Appendix 2

1

P
age 42



Appendix 2

2

P
age 43



Appendix 2

3

P
age 44



Appendix 2

4

P
age 45



Appendix 2

5

P
age 46



Appendix 2

6

P
age 47



Report to Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting MeetingDateLegal
Portfolio Cabinet Member for Adult 

Care, Cabinet Member for 
Health & Wellbeing, 
Cabinet Member for 
Children's Services

Report Author Ben Jorgensen
Public/Private Document

Adult, Children & Public Health Directorate Plans 2018-19 Quarter 4 
Performance Update

Executive Summary

1. To report progress at the end of Quarter 4 (1st January – 31st March 2019) 
towards achievement of the targets contained in the Adult Care Directorate 
Plan 2018-19, Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2018-19 and Public Health 
Directorate Plan 2018-19.  

Recommendation

2. Members are asked to review the information contained within the report and 
the appendices.

Reason for Recommendation

3. In accordance with the Council’s performance management framework. 
Progress towards the targets contained in directorate plans are to be reported 
to relevant Overview & Scrutiny Committees at the end of each quarter. 

The Quarter 4 progress reports for the Adult Care Directorate, Children’s 
Services Directorate and Public Health Directorate are attached at Appendices 
1, 2 and 3. Actions within each appendix have been colour coded in 
accordance with the following criteria.

Red: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the target 
date 
Amber: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the 
target date due to circumstances outside of the directorate’s control 
Green:  Action completed by the target date 
Purple: Action is not yet due for completion but is currently on track
The appendices include a commentary against actions that are showing red, 
amber, green or purple

Page 48

Agenda Item 10



This year the directorate plans are formatted differently to include milestones 
for each directorate action. This enables O&S to monitor the work that must be 
completed, to support achievement of the action

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Adult Care Directorate Plan 2018-19 Progress

Performance Overview

100% (18) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2018-19 are now 
complete. The chart below shows the overall performance of the Directorate in 
meeting its plan targets at the end of Quarter 4.

Quarter 4 Highlights

The new AMHP (Approved Mental Health Practitioner) hub is working well with 
evidenced outcomes for people in the borough of Rochdale. The dementia 
strategy is in development. A new Memorandum of Understanding is in place 
along with evolving governance arrangements.

Delayed Transfer of Care is below the GM prescribed target and is still one of 
the best in GM and the North West. Patient flow is improving with 
enhancements through the reablement service -78% year to date were 
successfully reabled. Integrated discharge teams are in place with improved 
offer at acute sites. Pennine Acute are developing the access to A&E 
pathways- this work is led by LCO colleagues and will be refocussed to spring 
2019. The % of people discharged from hospital into reablement and still at 
home 91 days later is over 86% and performing well. The community flow 
service has been set up and in place.

Links have been established with children’s services for joint working. The 7% 
target, to get adults with a learning disability to be in paid employment, set at 
the start of the year was a stretching one and although it will not be achieved 
at year end (likely to out turn 6.6%), Rochdale is still the 3rd best in GM on this 

Page 49



4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

indicator. There is a positive new offer under development in GM for an 
enhanced employment offer.

The quality assurance framework will be reported every quarter to the adult 
social care strategic partnership board. The framework policy has now been 
written and disseminated across the service; quarterly quality and practice 
assurance meetings occur along with triangulation of case audits. Social work 
practice governance has been completed in the joint Mental Health service 
and a new memorandum of understanding in place. Outcomes indicators are 
to be developed to demonstrate the quality of service and positive impact on 
service users. GDPR audits have been completed and all recommendations 
are in progress to be completed. The governance team within the service are 
supporting IG to ensure all the correct privacy notices are online along with 
developing retention periods.

In terms of development of the market for intensive support for vulnerable 
people, all schemes set up are on track with members being updated on a 
regular basis. Schemes include; Extra Care (Milnrow), Autism (Middleton) and 
Supported Accommodation (Heywood).

Work continues with Shared Lives to develop a valued, family based service, 
focused on reducing the need for older people to attend A&E or require 
hospital admissions. This work is in line with the GM strategy and currently 
ongoing.

Performance Issues

None

Children’s Services  Directorate Plan 2018-19 Progress

Performance Overview

76.9% (10) actions included in the Directorate Plan 2018-19 have now been 
complete. 23.1% (3) further actions have passed the action due date and are 
not complete. The chart below shows the overall performance of the 
Directorate in meeting its plan targets at the end of Quarter 4. 

Page 50



4.10

4.11

4.12

4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

The actions that are not fully complete and have passed the action due date 
(Amber) relate to:

 Continued implementation of SEND (Special Educational Needs / 
Disabilities) reforms

 Develop shared and innovative services to respond to children and 
families complex needs

 Improve workforce stability

Quarter 4 Highlights

The bid for strategic school improvement funding was unsuccessful however 
from the Autumn term 2018, we have progressed delivery of the EYFS 
Language and Communication Strategy. Improvements in reading outcomes 
at the end of key stage 2 evidence significant progress and impact of a 
number of pilot initiatives which will be incorporated in the borough wide 
reading strategy.

Primary and secondary school places are subject to ongoing review. Cabinet 
approval gained in March 2018 for further expansions to meet forecasted 
need. the Council has approved release of sites for two new schools

The Fair Access Protocol has been revised to ensure swifter but fair allocation 
under the normal admissions process. Availability of school places is very 
limited. This requires continual place planning review on a termly basis.

The annual School Building Maintenance Programme for 2018/19 has been 
prioritised, commissioned and delivered in line with agreed timescales and 
budgets.

The FSM Strategic partnership Board and the FSM Operational Board 
continue to operate effectively with regular partner updates; meeting on a 
monthly basis since January 2018. The operational group has recently re-
formatted its agenda to includeregular updates from partners - any issues 
identified are escalated to the Partnership Board.

QA audits on supervision and EHA's have been conducted since April 2018 
and lessons learned and good practice guidance is  disseminated across the 
team. Case audit processes have been embedded across EH / FSM. The 
revised step up/down guidance has also been re-written following consultation 
with key agencies and partners and approved by the Board. Briefings on the 
new protocol will be delivered and we will begin to measure impact on step 
up/down practice.

Following a full options appraisal involving extensive consultation with staff 
and partners, Youth Service staff did not want to proceed with the 
establishment of a workers cooperative but opted to remain within the Local 
Authority. Staff continue to provide a wide range of activities for young people 
across the Borough in a range of delivery styles and venues.

Page 51



4.18

4.19

4.20

4.21

4.22

4.23

4.24

We are not able to fully progress the work on the integrated 0 -25 model as 
this is dependent on Family Service Model and the commissioning of services. 
To prevent delay, stepshave been made to seek to create virtual teams E.G 
ESKW now attend the weekly CAONs meeting to ensure affective co working: 
monthly multi-agency complex cases discussion forum: work on a shared joint 
equipment purchasing point: joint team drop in surgeries for school and 
parents, Joint resource panels etc. 

School Readiness conference took place on  23rd November. 30 hour delivery 
fund project implemented, 30 hour access increased from 917 children in 
Autumn 2017 to 1,610 children in Summer 2018. 

Local representation on GM Early Years Workforce Strategy Group to support 
local development, service workforce audit undertaken against GM 
assessments and interventions. Revision of deadline to March 2019 to link this 
to the GM Workforce Academy Development Work.

Greater Manchester is continuing to develop a GM regional offer and the local 
offer will be aligned to this. Complex safeguarding lead has been appointed for 
GM and a work plan will be developed. Monies have been obtained from the 
DFE in respect of Complex Safe guarding and these are shaping local 
services. Currently progressing plans to have a co-located service that will 
manage local complex safeguarding issues on a multi-agency basis.

Project plan and Project board now in place to drive implementation. “Leading 
Relational Practice programme”. Recruitment and Retention working group 
(combined with NAAS) is in place. Work programme in development which 
incorporates conditions for success, revised job descriptions and job adverts, 
informed by post qualifying social work standards (KSS), revised career 
pathway which supports continuous professional development, and learning 
from exit interviews. This will inform the refreshed recruitment and retention 
strategy to become a vibrant “Rochdale Offer”.

The new arrangements under Working Together 2018 have remained the 
focus of the Board. A presentation was made to the Board Membership and it 
has remained a key agenda item since publication in July 2018. The proposed 
new arrangements document has been sent out to all partner agencies for 
consultation and early indications are that agencies are supportive of the 
proposed changes.

Work has continued in respect of the Transitional Arrangements and the plans 
for the implementation of the new Rochdale Multi-Agency Safeguarding 
Arrangements. The arrangements have been completed in report form and are 
currently out for consultation with all identified partner agencies. Work is being 
undertaken in respect of financial arrangements, changes for the Board 
Business Unit and a review of impact on other arrangements in place. A 
proposed date of June / July 2019 has been agreed. Further work is being 
undertaken in respect of the GM Standards Board. Key representatives across 
the region are in place and there continues to be a number of key areas of 
development. There is also opportunity to consider those areas where GM 
Local Authorities can come together to ensure effective and coordinated work 

Page 52



4.25

4.26

4.27

4.28

is undertaken where appropriate. This would also include consideration of 
those agencies that would cover GM area and would need to be involved in 
individual arrangements. The changes in respect of CDOP are being put in 
place and timescales requested to meet the cessation of the Board 
arrangements. The plan remains for a GM CDOP.

The GM Standards Board provides the opportunity to ensure that regional 
issues are considered for all key partner agencies. Learning from Early 
Adopters is  also being shared regionally via the Standards Board but also via 
the Regional Safeguarding Leads forum. Rochdale has also agreed to take 
part in an evaluation exercise sent out by Salford with regard to the Rapid 
Review and CSPR arrangements and fed back learning from involvement with 
the revised processes since July 2018.

Performance Issues

None

Public Health  & Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2018-19 Progress

Performance Overview

88.9% (16) actions included in the Directorate Plan 2018-19 are now 
complete. 11.1% (2) actions have passed the action due date and are not 
complete. The chart below shows the overall performance of the Directorate in 
meeting its plan targets at the end of Quarter 4. 

The actions that are not fully complete and have passed the action due date 
(Amber) relate to:
 Reduce avoidable deaths related to cardiovascular disease
 Develop and implement a behaviour change programme part of the 

wider commitment to changing the conversation between citizen and 
state.

Page 53



4.29

4.30

4.31

4.32

4.33

4.34

4.35

4.36

Quarter 4 Highlights

The annual flu programme was completed for high risk groups and staff. The 
community infection prevention and control plan was completed as agreed

The Integrated Prevention system ‘Connecting You’ has been launched with 
all staff recruited. A work plan has been implemented up to the end of March 
2019 and the forward plan for 2019/20 is currently being finalised.

All transformation projects in the Prevention and Access theme are now 
implemented and delivering. Outcome measures are being developed to 
assess the impact of the projects and a programme of evaluation has 
commenced. The Prevention and Access Partnership Board is in place and 
overseeing the delivery of GM and local transformation work as well as wider 
prevention developments. Work is underway to try and utilise business 
intelligence to enable better targeting of our preventative services.

A ‘Making Smoking History in Rochdale’ partnership summit was held on the 
2nd October, with a wide range of stakeholders attending. Priorities around 
tobacco for the next 2 years were agreed and these were consolidated into a 
draft Framework for Action. The lead for the adult smoking transformation 
project is now in post and is developing the implementation plan to establish a 
Pennine Acute Trust wide approach to tobacco addiction, including pathways 
of support for patients within the Trust to support them to ‘stop before the op’. 
The Framework for Action is currently being finalised in line with the new 
public health priorities for 2019/20.

The Baby Clear programme, commissioned from PAHT Midwifery service in 
terms of delivery of smoking quits is not on target due to long term staff 
sickness. This lack of capacity has been raised with the provider and 
recruitment is now taking place after an approximate 5 months gap. 
Throughout this period the quits have been delivered by the 2 Midwifery 
Support staff. As of February 2019, overall, 25% of women setting a quit date 
achieved a 4 week quit. This is significantly below the target of 70%. As of 
December 2018, 53% were lost from the incentive scheme. Other elements of 
the programme are performing well 97% of pregnant women are CO 
monitored at booking (target 95%). Of those women achieving a 4 and 12 
week quit all are CO validated quits. 

It is expected that following recruitment the smoking quit performance will 
improve.  

In terms of reducing deaths related to cardiovascular disease a report on 
outcomes was taken to the Integrated Commissioning Board and informed the 
development of priorities going forward. An equity audit of cardiac 
rehabilitation and outcomes review on cardiovascular disease were 
completed. Further work in this area is carried forward to 2019/20 due to 
capacity issues in the team to complete this work in 2018/19.

Consultants have been appointed to develop new Sport England specification 
and adapt to Link4Life service delivery (with addition of Culture also). New 

Page 54



4.37

4.38

4.39

4.40

4.41

4.42

4.43

leases and licences for Link4Life properties are being developed. L4L contract 
extended until 2028. Anticipated Cabinet report for new P.A approval in July 
19. Estimated go live of new contract and framework March 2020 with revised 
management fee/calculation being developed with earlier phased introduction 
of some key elements of the revised contract.

A completed draft plan for 2019/20 has gone to the GM Ageing Hub and will 
also be shared with Wider Leadership Team. The steering Group are working 
towards completing the WHO Audit framework and we will also be carrying out 
some engagement events in Q1 (2019/20) with older residents in the borough 
to inform our Action Plan for 2020.

The Rochdale Work and Health Steering Group met during September, with 
key partners coming together to provide system leadership and governance 
for the joint programme of work relating to health and employment within 
Rochdale.  A key priority in the group is to strengthen the contribution that 
Rochdale employers make to good quality work & healthy workplaces, 
including the public sector leading by example. Public Health, together with 
leads from across the council, have come together to progress RBC in 
becoming a gold standard workplace wellbeing employer.  A report was 
submitted to Leadership in June to seek endorsement to run a short 
Workforce Wellbeing Survey. The survey has now been completed and a 
Workforce Wellbeing stakeholder event is being planned for May 2019 to help 
inform a refreshed Workforce Wellbeing strategy for the organisation.

All actions for the GM Air Quality action plan are underway within the required 
timescales. Progress made with modelling for Clean Air Action Zone.

The local suicide prevention group meets regularly and has agreed to follow 
the GM Suicide Prevention Strategy. Local actions have included improved 
use of data, notices at risk spots and work to improve communication in males 
at risk. Rochdale contributes strongly to GM work on suicide prevention 
attending all meetings and influencing the development of the GM approach 
going forward.

A Phase 1 GM Population Health dashboard has been completed as agreed 
and a suite of standards were produced for testing across the system. An 
excellence in GM programme has been agreed and will focus on childhood 
obesity in 2019/20.

Work is ongoing towards a borough wide behaviour change programme. 
Options are currently being developed to be taken to Leadership early May 
2019.

There have been a significant number of interventions delivered by a range of 
partners under the Sugar Smart banner. These include general awareness 
raising, supporting children and families to give up fizzy drinks (GULP), 
undertaking engagement with the Youth Council on the issue of consuming 
less sugar and trailing (in 1 school), reducing the sugar content of puddings 
served to children by one third. The childhood obesity partnership is signed up 
to Sugar Smart UK and the website promotes the work we are doing across 

Page 55



4.44

4.45

4.46

4.47

the country.   

The Daily Toddle is now established in all children’s centres and significant 
progress has been made to roll this out to all private nurseries. 34% of schools 
undertake the Daily Mile.  

A completion date for the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment on Adverse 
Childhood Experiences has revised to 30.4.19; on target for completion. 
Needs assessment will be presented to RBCSB and to stakeholders on 
30.5.19.
 
Performance Issues

None

Alternatives Considered

None

Costs and Budget Summary

5. None

Risk and Policy Implications

6. 6.1 Local authorities have specific duties in respect of children under the 
Children Acts 1989 and 2004. They also have statutory duties under the 
Children (Leaving Care) Act 2000 and the associated regulations, being the 
Care Leavers (England) Regulations 2010 in respect of eligible and relevant 
and former relevant children i.e. current and future cohorts of children who 
have left or will leave the local authority’s care.

6.2 The Children and Social Work Act 2017 introduced 3 new provisions:
i. A duty on local authorities which requires them to offer Personal 

Adviser support to all care leavers towards whom the local authority 
had duties under section 23C of the Children Act 1989, up to age 25 - 
irrespective of whether they are engaged in education or training. 
This includes care leavers who return to the local authority at any 
point after the age of 21 up to age 25 and request such support. 
(Under previous legislation, local authorities were required to only 
provide care leavers with support from a Personal Adviser until they 
reached age 21, with that support continuing up to age 25 if a care 
leaver was engaged in education or training. However, this support 
was not available to care leavers aged over 21 who were not in 
education, training or employment); 

ii. A duty on local authorities to consult on and then publish their 'local 
offer' for care leavers, which sets out both care leavers' legal 
entitlements and the additional discretionary support that the local 
authority provides; and

Page 56



iii. A duty on local authorities which requires them to have regard to 
seven 'corporate parenting principles', that will guide the way in which 
the local authority provides its services to children in care and care 
leavers.

6.3 The seven Corporate Parenting principles under The Children and Social 
Work Act 2017 are:

i. To act in the best interests, and promote the physical and mental 
health and well-being, of those children and young people;

ii. To encourage those children and young people to express their views, 
wishes and feelings;

iii. To take into account the views, wishes and feelings of those children 
and young people;

iv. To help those children and young people gain access to, and make 
the best use of, services provided by the local authority and its 
relevant partners;

v. To promote high aspirations, and seek to secure the best outcomes, 
for those children and young people;

vi. For those children and young people to be safe, and for stability in 
their home lives, relationships and education or work; and

vii. To prepare those children and young people for adulthood and 
independent living.

The nature of services provided to children and families involve managing 
significant levels of risk. High quality early intervention and social care 
services reduce the likelihood of children suffering harm and increase the 
likelihood of children developing into successful adults and achieving and 
succeeding.

The 2010 Equality Act outlines the provisions of the Public Sector Equality
Duty which requires Public Bodies to have due regard to the need to: 

 eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and 
other conduct prohibited by the Equality Act 2010

 advance equality of opportunity and  foster good relations between 
people from different groups

 The broad purpose of this duty is to integrate considerations of 
equality into day business and keep them under review in decision 
making, the design of policies and the delivery of services

Equalities and Diversity considerations are a key element of the Council’s 
approach to safeguarding and work with care leavers.

Consultation

7. Not required

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. Adult Care Directorate Plan 2018-
19

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale OL16 1XU

Page 57



Children’s Services Directorate 
Plan 2018-19

Public Health Directorate Plan 
2018-19

For Further Information Contact: Ben Jorgensen, , 
ben.jorgensen@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 58



  

 

       

   

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2018-19 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  1  Of  6 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

   

AC18001 Transformation of integrated services  31 March 2019   

 

Shadow integrated project board in place with good progress made in achieving objectives to deliver integration 

 

11/04/19 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 AC18001.A Develop new integrated arrangements with NHS provider colleagues  31 March 2019   

 AC18001.B Further develop new Neighbourhood teams  31 March 2019   

 AC18001.C Develop as an active partner in the new LCO  31 March 2019   

 AC18001.D 
 

Further integrate Mental Health and Learning Disability Services into 
the new arrangements   

31 March 2019 
 

  

 

 

  

 

AC18002 Further development of support  to improve outcomes for 
service users 

 31 March 2019   

Objectives: 50% of personal budgets are taken as a cash budget for older and physically disabled people. Whole service target of 35% of PBs to be taken as a 
cash budget.... 2% reduction in long term care placements for older and physically disabled people Target to be 243 placements....5% reduction in long term 
care placements for people with severe mental health needs....Increased 24/7 care options for people with learning disabilities or mental health needs....Set up 
50 personal health budgets ....3% of eligible people have needs met by effective use of social capital by March 2019.Delaying the need for further 
assessment....Reduction in care packages commensurate with transformation plan.. 

 

The service has achieved 41% at the end of year for service users with a cash budget There are less new placement of older people in 
permanent residential placements when compared to the 3% increase in the age group however, as life expectancy has increased, people are 
remaining in the placements longer which means the base number on residential/ nursing placements is currently increasing. The review of 
supported living schemes is now part of a larger review. This means it has had to be delayed as part of a much wider ranging outcome focused 
review of mental health services. . We are exploring opportunities with Pennine Care Foundation Trust to look at pathways in and out of the LD 
teams and regular meetings have improved communications There is active work ongoing with providers, service users and family to explore 
person centred approach to housing. Extracare at Ladybarn and one other are on stream in the next financial year to enhance the support of 
people with Learning Disabilities Work is ongoing with children’s to align specialist services for young people (0-25) and complex 
interdependencies as part of the complex aligned service 

11/04/19 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 AC18002.A Develop support planning to make better use of peoples own and 
community resources 

31 March 2019   

 AC18002.B Increase the % of people who use cash budgets 31 March 2019   

 AC18002.C Further reduce long term care home placements 31 March 2019   

 AC18002.D Develop health personal budgets as part of joint packages of care 31 March 2019   

 AC18002.E Act on recommendations of review of Greave house and Mental 
Health supported living schemes to support improved outcomes and 
independence for people with significant long term mental health 

31 March 2019   

 

P
age 59



  

 

       

   

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2018-19 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  2  Of  6 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

needs  

 AC18002.F Extend the range of care and support options for people with learning 
disabilities  

31 March 2019   

 AC18002.G Look at opportunities for further integration of process/polices across 
specialist LD services 

31 March 2019  

 

 

  

 

AC18003 Further development of mental health service arrangements  31 March 2019   

Objectives: New social care leadership in place in Mental health....New service offer available to people with Dementia and their carers....New Approved Mental 
Health Practitioner (AMPH) service in place which assists in reduced number of people with mental health needs attending A&E departments..... 

 

The new AMHP hub is working well with evidenced outcomes to demonstrate improved outcomes for people in the borough of Rochdale. The 
dementia strategy is in development New Memorandum of Understanding is in place along with evolving governance arrangements. 

11/04/19 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 AC18003.A  Improve social care governance and service delivery as part of the 
joint service provided by RBC and Pennine Care Foundation NHS 
trust (mental health provider)  

31 March 2019   

 AC18003.B Work with commissioners to develop and implement a new Dementia 
offer  

31 March 2019   

 AC18003.C Develop a stronger dedicated Approved Mental Health Practitioner 
(AMHP) service which improves access, and assures quality and 
increases consistency of practice under the Mental health Act and 
supports emergency duty team working. 

31 March 2019   

 

 

  

 

AC18004 Increase the effectiveness of enablement and other services 
that reduce the need for hospital level care 

 31 March 2019   

Objectives: Delayed Transfers of Care to be reduced in line with LCO target for 18/19....People who are medically fit to leave hospital to be reduced by 
50%....77% of people who use reablement services to be reabled or a reduced package of care....Non-elective admissions are reduced in line with the locality 
plan ....85 % of People (65+) discharged from hospital into reablement services still at home 91 days. 

 

Delayed Transfer of Care is below the GM prescribed target and is still one of the best in the GM and the North West. Patient flow is improving 
with enhancements through the reablement service and 78% year to date were successfully reabled Integrated discharge teams are in place with 
improved offer at acute sites. Pennine Acute are developing the access to A&E pathways- this work is led by LCO colleagues and will be 
refocussed to spring 2019 The % of people discharged from hospital into reablement and still at home 91 days later is over 86% and performing 
well. The community flow service has been set up and in place 

11/04/19 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 AC18004.A Putting Integrated Discharge Teams in place across Pennine Acute 
/Pennine care Hospitals Sites 

31 March 2019   

 AC18004.B Increasing the % of people able to be independent as a result of 
enablement services 

31 March 2019   

 

P
age 60



  

 

       

   

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2018-19 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  3  Of  6 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

 AC18004.C Set up a community flow service which will include proactive case 
follow up for designated “stranded” cases and also a coordinated 
trusted assessment function for long term care settings |(for receipt 
of D2A recovery cases) 

31 March 2019   

 AC18004.D Extending the social care offer at A&E departments with partner  
organisations to reduce unnecessary admissions 

31 March 2019   

 

  

 

AC18005 Further develop support for younger people with learning 
disabilities 

 31 March 2019   

Objectives: The establishment of a specific borough wide team to link more with Children with Disability services as part of the development of a 0 – 25yrs 
service for children and young people ....7% of adults with a learning disability to be in paid employment.... 

 

Links have been established with children’s services for joint working and work is underway on the transition project The 7% target set at the start 
of the year was a stretching one and although it will not be achieved at year end (likely to out turn 6.6%), Rochdale is still the 3rd best in GM on 
this indicator. There is a positive new offer under development in GM for an enhanced employment offer 

11/04/19 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 AC18005.A We will strengthen the transition arrangement, and  for young people 
with the most complex needs 

31 March 2019   

 AC18005.B Increase the options for more people with learning disabilities to gain 
and keep employment, working with commissioners, established 
employment support providers and employers  

31 March 2019   

 

 

  

 

AC18006 Further development of the service quality assurance function  31 March 2019   

Objectives: Increased number of Carers assessments and carers supported ....Internal Quality Assurance measures   

The quality assurance framework will be reported every quarter to the adult social care strategic partnership board. The framework policy has 
now been written and disseminated across the service- quarterly quality and practice assurance meetings occur along with triangulation of case 
audits The managing allegations process and training has been delivered and continues to be embedded the trial of joint health and social care 
assessments has been done and proved effective. Social work practice governance has been completed in the joint Mental Health service and a 
new memorandum of understanding in place Outcomes indicators are to be developed to demonstrate the quality of service and positive impact 
on service users Carers continue to be supported through NCompass alongside the Adult Care team. The number of carers supported has 
increased. GDPR audits have been completed and all recommendations are in progress to be completed. The governance team within the 
service are supporting IG to ensure all the correct privacy notices are online along with developing retention periods 

11/04/19 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 AC18006.A Further develop the quality assurance framework for service delivery 
with clear standards of service met. New framework compliance to be 
monitored by the internal quality assurance team 

31 March 2019   

 AC18006.B Trial joint health and social care assessments within the Allis system 31 March 2019   

 AC18006.C Embed the managing allegations process, procedures and practice 
within Adult Care and partners 

31 March 2019   

 

P
age 61



  

 

       

   

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2018-19 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  4  Of  6 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

 AC18006.D Reviewing social work practice governance in the joint Mental Health 
service 

31 March 2019   

 AC18006.E Work with the new enhanced carers service offer to maximise the 
number of carers supported. 

31 March 2019   

 AC18006.F Complete audits by the end of June 2019 to comply with GDPR 
implementation 

31 March 2019   

 

  

 

AC18007 Develop a section 75 agreement between the council and 
Pennine Acute to deliver the operational elements of Adult Social Care 

 31 March 2019   

Objectives: Completed section 75 agreement for the delivery of Adult Care operational services via a single line management arrangement with Pennine Acute.  

This has now been deferred until March 2020 in line with the redefined approach for the LCO – features in 19/20 plan   11/04/19 

 

AC18008 Improve the quality of regulated care services.  31 March 2019   

Objectives: Improved Quality of Service provision as evidenced by: Improved CQC ratings, reduced safeguarding issues, default notices kept to a minimum and 

improved service user and family/ carer satisfaction. 

 

The new approach is working well with QA officers developing positive working relationships with providers leading to improved attendance at 
provider forums. This has now been completed. 

11/04/19 

 

AC18009 In partnership with the LCO implement the development 
contract with the new home care providers to deliver the new models of 
home care on a neighbourhood basis. 

 31 March 2019   

Objectives: Maintenance of a sustainable home care market that helps to prevent people going into residential care and hospital. Reduced delays in accessing 

home care packages. Reduction in packages of care and increased use of community assets. Development of networks of home care providers and community 

assets on a neighbourhood basis. Increase in number of community micro enterprises to support people to access community assets as alternatives to home 

care packages   

 

Completed 12 month review of home care model and analysis of impact to date to inform next steps. 

Community Catalyst now mobilised and developing the micro enterprises/community assets – on track 

 

11/04/19 

 

AC18010 In partnership with the LCO, implement the enhanced health 
care offer in care homes across the borough. 

 31 March 2019   

Objectives: Improve Access to Health services in Care Homes. Improve urgent care response for Care Homes when residents become unwell. Reduce A and E 
attendances and non-elective admissions to hospital from Care Homes. Improve the management of long term conditions in Care Homes. Improve the support 
to Care Home residents at end of life to increase the number of people who die in their place of choice 

 

Review of impact of the virtual team underway to inform the mainstream model going forward. 11/04/19 

P
age 62



  

 

       

   

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2018-19 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  5  Of  6 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

 

 

AC18011 Develop the market for intensive support for vulnerable people 
including people with Learning Disabilities 

 31 March 2019   

Objectives: Autism project developed. Reduction in out of borough placements and care closer to home. Increased number of Extra Care units developed or 

planned. Increased care and accommodation options available for vulnerable people across the borough  

 

All schemes still on track, members regularly briefed on progress. 

Schemes include: 

- Extra Care, Milnrow – Summer 

- Autism, Middleton - winter (subject to NHSE funding approval) 

- Supported Accommodation, Heywood - winter 

11/04/19 

 

AC18012 Implement the new residential care (complex dementia needs) 
facility at Springhill, including the dementia day service model 

 31 March 2019   

Objectives: Improved Dementia services for people with Learning disabilities and dementia/ people with challenging behaviours. Reduction in out of borough 

placements. Reduction in hospital admissions 

 

Springhill opened as a residential home with a community café in November 18: 

- Work has started with the CCG to offer onsite specialist Health provision  

- Establishing a day care offer and embedding the specialist NHS Hub service will be undertaken over the coming months 

The Willows now in delivery and has been completed. 

11/04/19 

 

AC18013 Analyse the North West sustainability work and use to develop 
a market position statement for the borough 

 31 March 2019   

Objectives: Improved data on the market requirements for Adult Social Care. Clear commissioning requirements. SMART Market Position Statement that sets 
out the commissioning intentions for Care and support services 

 

Ongoing work with NW ADASS on the sustainability of the market, Rochdale a key partner in the NW working group looking at tools to support 
LA’s to predict market information.   
 

11/04/19 

 

AC18014 Continue work on fee levels and appropriate costs of care,  31 March 2019   

P
age 63



  

 

       

   

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2018-19 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  6  Of  6 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

with providers, to ensure sustainability of the sector 

Objectives: Diverse social Care market able to respond to demands in the market. Reduced number of out of borough placements for people with complex 
needs. Improved quality of life for service users and carers 

 

Fee setting processes completed for 19/20. 
 
Ongoing work to reduce the number of out of borough placements. 

11/04/19 

 

AC18015 In partnership with the LCO develop a shared lives service 
that reduces the need for older people to attend A&E or require hospital 
admissions 

 31 March 2019   

Objectives: Reduced A and E attendances and hospital admissions. Increased options for respite and day provision. Reduced Care Breakdown  
 

 

In September 18, after considerable research, national pilot information, understanding our local position & assessing, the likelihood of success in 
terms of reducing hospital admission an LCO decision was made to cease this programme. 
 
However, work continues with Shared Lives to develop this valued, family based service, in line with the GM strategy. This is ongoing. 

11/04/19 

 

AC18016 Procure any services where contracts are ending in 2018/19 as 
required 

 31 March 2019   

Objectives: Comply with procurement legislation    

Completed for 18/19 and plans in place for 19/20 activity. 11/04/19 

 

AC18017 Actively engage in and support the delivery of the GM ADASS 
strategy 

 31 March 2019   

Objectives: Transformed models of service delivery linked to the GM ADASS strategy.  

Completed, we actively engaged in the GM strategy and align our local model to it. 
  

11/04/19 

 

AC18018 In partnership with Housing deliver a supported housing 
strategy 

 31 March 2019   

Objectives: A supported housing strategy that supports the delivery of the health and social care transformation bid. An innovative partnership approach to the 
delivery of homelessness services aimed at the delivery of improved outcomes for people faced with homelessness. 

 

Accommodation strategy work is underway.   
 
Steering group has been established 
 

11/04/19 

 

P
age 64



  

 

       

   

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2018-19 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  1  Of  9 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

   
   

CS18001 Implement the School improvement Strategy  to improve pupil 
achievement at all key stages 

 31 March 2019   

The bid for strategic school improvement funding was unsuccessful however from the Autumn term 2018, we have progressed to delivery of the 
EYFS Language and Communication Strategy. Improvements in reading outcomes at the end of key stage 2 2018 evidence significant progress 
and impact of a number of pilot initiatives which will be incorporated in the borough wide reading strategy. The implementation of the Schools’ 
Strategy has strengthened the accountability framework around the collaborative partnership in addition to supporting the partnerships through 
the Collaborative Partnership Development and Challenge role. These areas of work will continue to remain priorities. 
 
The primary/secondary progression/transition project has extended its reach and remit. The initial focus on English has continued and there is 
now an additional focus on mathematics. 

 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 CS18001.A Implementation of Schools Strategy 2018-2019  31 December 2018   

 CS18001.B Establishment of Strategic Primary School Improvement Board 30 December 2018   

 CS18001.C Extend reach of primary/secondary progression/transition project   30 September 2018   

 CS18001.D Delivery of EYFS Language and Communication Strategy 31 March 2019   

 CS18001.E Development of Borough Wide Reading Strategy 31 March 2019   

 CS18001.F Improve the effectiveness of the collaborative partnerships 31 March 2019   
 

 

  

 

 

CS18002 To provide sufficient school places for all children within the 
Borough.  

 30 September 2018   

Primary and secondary school places are subject to ongoing review. Cabinet approval gained in March 2018 for further expansions to meet 
forecasted need. Additionally, 2 secondary Free Schools are required in the Borough for 2020 and 2022 respectively; the Council has approved 
release of sites for these. The Altus Trust and Wardle Academy Trust have submitted bids to each establish one of these schools, along with 
other bidders, and the DFE is proposing to announce the outcome in the Spring Term. 
 
Robust allocation procedures are in place for the `Normal Admissions Round'. School entry to Reception and Year 7. Review of methods to 
promote and communicate the processes to parents/carers continues. The Fair Access Protocol has been revised to ensure swifter but fair 
allocation under this process. Availability of school places is very limited in some year groups in some areas and requests for places remain high 
from new to Borough/UK applicants. This requires continual place planning review on a termly basis. 
 
The annual School Building Maintenance Programme for 2018/19 has been prioritised, commissioned and delivered in line with agreed 
timescales and budgets. Feasibility studies and construction projects have been commissioned for new school places and are on target to be 
delivered within timescale and budget. 

 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 CS18002.A Adequate number of primary, secondary and special school places.  30 September 2018   

 

P
age 65



  

 

       

   

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2018-19 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  2  Of  9 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

 CS18002.B Robust allocation process for school admissions. 30 September 2018   

 CS18002.C Effective management and maintenance of assets and delivery of 
improvement and expansion projects. 

30 September 2018   

 

  

 

CS18003 Deliver the Family Service Model including the roll out of 
Locality Teams 

 31 March 2019   

Reports are submitted to the Strategic group from the Operational groups and localities networks including performance framework reports. The 
training has now been commissioned from Strengthening Practice for the Hub and Locality enabler teams and will commence in July 2018. This 
training delivery has now begun to core staff and key partners across the Hub and Locality teams. A second phase roll out to wider partners is 
possible for 2019-20 once we have evaluated impact of the first phase of training. 
 
The FSM Strategic partnership Board and the FSM Operational Board have been in place and meeting on a monthly basis since January 2018. 
The operational group has recently re-formatted its agenda to include more regular updates from partners - and any issues identified are 
escalated to the Partnership Board. 
 

 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 CS18003.A Establish network and steering groups within each locality to support 
local delivery. 

31 March 2018   

 CS18003.B Establish  strategic steering group to oversee and guide delivery at a 
senior management level 

31 March 2018   

 CS18003.C Establish a performance framework to track progress of 
implementation and any blockages to delivery 

30 April 2018   

 CS18003.D Provide regular exception reports to the strategic steering group and 
partnership board to track progress and sight blockages 

31 March 2019   

 CS18003.E Training to support cultural and behavioural change to ensure the 
locality and hub operate as a single entity 

30 June 2018   

 

 

  

 

CS18004 Embed the Early Help Strategy   31 March 2019   

Reports from the newly merged scorecards are taken regularly to the FSM Strategic and operational groups. Periodic reports on progress and 
barriers will be taken to CYPP and the Safeguarding Board as requested. 
 
QA audits on supervision and EHA's have been conducted since April 2018 and these processes in EH / FSM are being aligned to Children's 
services processes and OFSTED from November 2018. Early in 2019 lessons learned and good practice guidance will be disseminated across 
the team. Case audit processes are being embedded across EH / FSM from December 2018. The revised step up/down guidance has also been 
re-written following consultation with key agencies and partners and approved by the Board in December 2018. From February 2019 briefings on 
the new protocol will be delivered and we will begin to measure impact on step up/down practice. 

 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 CS18004.A Refresh and embed the Early Help strategy and promote to partners 30 April 2018   

 

P
age 66



  

 

       

   

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2018-19 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  3  Of  9 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

via the Family Service Model steering group. 

 CS18004.B Merge the Early Help and Family Service Model scorecards to 
produce a more comprehensive delivery monitoring framework. 

30 April 2018   

 CS18004.C Highlight implementation issues with key other partnership groups 
such as Children and Young Peoples Partnership (CYPP) and 
Safeguarding Children Board. 

31 March 2019   

 CS18004.D Pursue key quality developments as part of the OFSTED plan such as 
supervision, audits, Early Help Assessment Quality Assurance etc. 

31 March 2019   

 

  

 

CS18005 Alternative delivery model for youth service  30 June 2019   

Options appraisal has been completed resulting in no major change to current delivery model. Staff continues to provide a wide range of activities 
for YP across the Borough in a range of delivery styles and venues. 
 
Following a full options appraisal involving extensive consultation with staff and partners,  Youth Service staff did not want to proceed with the 
establishment of a workers  cooperative but opted  to remain within the Local Authority. 
 
Due to the decision by staff to continue with the existing model of delivery, no further action required. 
 
Staff continue to provide a wide range of activities for yp across the Borough in a range of delivery styles and venues. 

 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 CS18005.A Options Appraisal completed 30 June 2018   

 CS18005.B Approval of preferred option agreed by Cabinet 30 September 2018   

 CS18005.C Effective management of transition into new delivery model 30 June 2019   

 CS18005.D Continued delivery of high quality provision to young people across 
the Borough during appraisal, transition  and implementation on new 
delivery model 

30 June 2019   

 

 

  

 

CS18006 Continued implementation of SEND (Special Educational 
Needs / Disabilities) reforms 

 31 March 2019   

The second SEND Action Plan is now in place and progress is being tracked via the CWD partnership Board. We are preparing of update letter 
for the DfE on our continued joint progress against the action plan. We are preparing for our first 2 day Peer Challenge visit – this includes an 
update self-view to look at our area of development strength and areas we see require further development and progress. Note in partnership 
with the Voice ( parent carers forum) we are planning some independent legal training around the ECHP process so that staff and parents learn 
together the legislative framework etc. 
 
Building work has commenced on the ASC provision space with 2 mainstream schools. We are submitting a bid for a 75 place free special school 
for children with ASC. WE continue to support mainstream school support children with ASC via training such as ASC School Champions and 
Setting (we trained 130 staff in 9 setting ) having completed the first years cohort We have now got the E learning model for all staff We run 
coffee morning type drop in for parents and schools to access support and advice to manage children in a school We are increasing the capacity 
with the ASC RANS team Note are ranked as the LA with the most children with ASC who have an EHCPlan supported in Mainstream in 

 

P
age 67



  

 

       

   

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2018-19 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  4  Of  9 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

England. 
 
SEN Support Tracking work is being progress via the SEND Head Teacher task and finish Group. We have an agreed shared definition of SEN 
Support now We have developed for Schools a SEN Support Policy pro-forma. Currently we are piloting a universal SEN Support plan that can 
be used from early years through to secondary to support the vision that the family only need to tell their story once Work has been completed on 
the data cleansing around the SEN Support coding on the SIMMs Training via the SENCO network has been delivered on SEN Support  
Graduated response and coding Update on the 28-12-18 work started on developing data report to enable us to track numbers of children who 
were at SEN Support and due to success input no longer remain at SEN Support - to enable us to measure the impact of the SEN Support plans 
- Revised 0 - 25 SEN Support plans are being piloted with roll out date being March 2019 
 
Significant work has been undertaken to reduce pupil exclusion rates within the borough with initial prioritisation given to pupil exclusion within 
the borough’s secondary schools. Clear measurable and positive impact has been evidenced whilst the borough acknowledges that this will 
remain a key area in which to improve further. An early investment to determine the factors contributing to the high rate of exclusion has 
determined the direction of travel. The strong partnership relationships with schools and high prioritisation of this agenda have made a positive 
contribution to the improvements made. 
 
Transition event took place on 10- 10 18 where the Policy and strategy will be formally launch. The Launch is being presented jointly with parents 
to reinforce the collaborative approach taken in developing the strategy - this was followed up in the late afternoon by a session for young people 
and parents around the transition process. Update 28-12-18 in Nov we completed a Multi-Agency Audit re transition - report is due to go to 
RBCSB. The findings were that more work is needed to ensure staff are accessing the Transition Policy to support smooth transition between 
services so a revised training programme will be developed in January 2019. 
 
We are not able to fully progress the work on the integrated 0 -25 model as this is dependent on Family Service Model and the commissioning of 
services. This has been accepted by the Challenge meeting. To prevent delay and drift steps across a range of teams have been made to seek 
to create a virtual teams E.G ESKW now attend the weekly CAONs meeting to ensure affective co working: monthly multi-agency complex cases 
discussion forum: work on a shared joint equipment purchasing point: joint team drop in surgeries for school and parents, Joint resource panels 
etc. The Current Adults transition Team will be moving to sit with the CWD SW team within Number One riverside with them working as a whole 
team. Update 28-12-18 - 6 month pilot running of the hosting an OT within the RANS service to support joint working and single worker approach. 
Joint meeting with SEND lead in Pennine Care and HoS establish now to support shared working. Development of the joint CETR process and 
single pathway that links into the MACNP to ensure seamless approach around commissioning. Work ongoing on the electronic resource 
allocation process that will pull together funding packages of support between health and social care - mirroring adult practice. 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 CS18006.A Progress the second phase of the SEND action plan –  31 March 2019   

 CS18006.B Increase ASC School provision within Rochdale through development 
of resource provision and skills set  

31 December 2018   

 CS18006.C Develop the SEN Support plan and tracking  30 September 2018   

 CS18006.D Reduction in School exclusion of SEND children  see NDP7 31 March 2019   

 CS18006.E Launch of  transition Policy  31 October 2018   

 CS18006.F Further progress the Multi agency 0 – 25 service in line with Family 
Service Model  

31 March 2019   

 

P
age 68



  

 

       

   

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2018-19 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  5  Of  9 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

 CS18006.G Explore and make application for achieving the SEND quality mark for 
the Youth Offending Service 

31 March 2019   

 

  

 

CS18007 Lead the development of a School Readiness Strategy  and 
embed practice  in line with the  School Readiness Action Plan 

 31 March 2019   

Development work to commence shortly for integrated working between Early Years, Childcare Settings and Health Visiting teams, 
implementation of nominated link practitioners, sharing of ASQ assessment information. Letter sent to childcare providers, process agreed with 
Health Visiting but awaiting senior health approval to progress. 
 
Task Group established for development of an Early years Communication and Language Pathway, mapping of existing provision completed. 
This task is now linked to GM Early Years Outcome Bid therefore review of action revised to March 2019 pending bid outcome 
 
School Readiness conference organised for 23rd November. 30 hour delivery fund project implemented, 30 hour access increased from 917 
children in Autumn 2017 to 1,610 children in Summer 2018.  
 
Development work to commence shortly. Local representation on GM Early Years Workforce Strategy Group to support local development, 
service workforce audit undertaken against GM assessments and interventions. Revision of deadline to March 2019 to link this to the GM 
Workforce Academy Development Work. 

 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 CS18007.A Launch of the Parent Portal for families within Rochdale. 30 June 2018   

 CS18007.B School Readiness scorecard to include Greater Manchester 
indicators and regular reporting of performance outcomes to CYPP 
sub groups 

31 July 2018   

 CS18007.C Review of 1,001 days pathway pilot in Middleton,  learn lessons, scale 
up to borough level and align with GM 8 Stage Model 

30 September 2018   

 CS18007.D Further development of integrated working between Early Years, 
Childcare Settings and Health Visiting teams, implementation of 
nominated link practitioners, sharing of ASQ assessment information.  

30 September 2018   

 CS18007.E Lead the development of an Early years Communication and 
Language Pathway and inform a refreshed strategy.  

31 March 2019   

 CS18007.F C-ordinate and deliver a multi-agency Early Years / School Readiness 
Summit 

31 December 2018   

 CS18007.G Increase take up of 30 hours within wards where this is lower through 
implementation of the 30 hours delivery fund. 

31 January 2019   

 CS18007.H Audit of the Early Years Workforce and production of  workforce 
strategy linked to GM assessments and interventions 

31 January 2019   

 

 

  

 

CS18008 Implement the Ofsted Action Plan  31 December 2018   

Implementation of the revised QA framework and auditing schedule has taken place. A report has been produced and explanations made clear.  

P
age 69



  

 

       

   

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2018-19 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  6  Of  9 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

Heads of service are moderating all managers audits. 
Revised the strengthening practice programme for phase 2 of the delivery the programme for SW's and managers. This has commenced. 
EHASH model launched. Locality teams in place. QA work showing an increased understanding and consistent application of thresholds. 
Strategic permanence group has met on 3 occasions. Commenced a baseline mapping for all cared 4 children in relation to plans of permanence 
and also to identify children who require life story. The strategic permanence group has agreed that a working group is to be set up to take 
forward actions for practice that are informed by the baseline findings. There is a clear plan of how to move the permanence strategy forward. A 
focused visit by Ofsted has taken place which will bench mark future progress. 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 CS18008.A Improved quality of practice and management oversight 31 December 2018   

 CS18008.B Improved understanding and evaluation of what life is like for 
children and evaluation of the impact that practice has on improving 
their experience 

31 December 2018   

 CS18008.C Consistent application of threshold of need and decision making to 
step down or end care planning particularly for those children at risk 
of neglect or domestic abuse 

30 September 2018   

 CS18008.D All cared for children understand their own histories and have 
certainty about their plan for permanence 

31 December 2018   

 

 

  

 

CS18009 Redesign and implement the revised model for out of hours 
response for the most vulnerable children and adults 

 31 December 2018   

The shared service has continued to be explored in respect of EDT. The project lead in Bury has completed a paper on what a shared service 
could look like and presented options for Rochdale to consider. These options are being considered and early feedback has been provided to 
Bury regarding the paper presented. Options appraisal completed.  Bury are now providing shared service. Recruitment for new post is 
underway. 
A further meeting took place in September 2018 with children's and adult services. The initial scoping and design principles were discussed by 
the group. Reports to Senior Leadership Teams will be progressed for both Bury and Rochdale when the model has been agreed; this is 
expected early November 2018. 
The options for a shared service have not been agreed as yet and we are not in a position to sign a shared service agreement. Endorsement at 
leadership level has taken place, move to implementation phase now. 

 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 CS18008.A Develop and implement shared service with Bury 31 December 2018   

 CS18009.B Workshops and initial scoping of service need design principles 
completed. 

30 June 2018   

 CS18009.C Sign up for shared service proposal secured across both localities 
and 

31 August 2018   

 CS18009.D Stakeholder engagement  event  held 30 September 2018   

 CS18009.E Implementation phase initiated  31 October 2018   
 

 

  

 

P
age 70



  

 

       

   

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2018-19 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  7  Of  9 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

CS18010 Develop shared and innovative services to respond to children 
and families complex needs  

 31 March 2019   

Greater Manchester is continuing to develop a GM regional offer and the local offer will be aligned to this. Complex safeguarding lead has been 
appointed for GM and a work plan will be developed. Monies have been obtained from the DFE in respect of Complex Safe guarding and these 
are shaping local services. Currently progressing plans to have a co-located service that will manage local complex safeguarding issues on a 
multi-agency basis. 
 
Consultation is underway in respect of innovation and these are on track to be presented and agreed at the programme board. The co-design 
has started in respect of the local offer around complex safeguarding. There is now a GM lead appointed. Stakeholder events have been 
arranged. Monies have been obtained from GMCA in order to lead on a strengthened early help/prevention approach to children and young 
people. The plans submitted by Rochdale outlining how this would be used were accepted. YOS links are already made with EHASH. There is to 
be an offer from YOS to the local plans to enhance the approach to complex safeguarding. 
 
No wrong door implementation plan on track. Phased implementation during 2019/20. Overarching plan for strengthening families and ACT 
agreed, detailed plan progression during 2019/20. 
 

 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 CS18010.A Implement programme of innovation aligned with Greater Manchester 
transformation including adolescent offer, complex Safeguarding and 
pre-birth assessment service 

31 March 2019   

 CS18010.B GM innovation proposals presented and agreed at Programme Board 30 September 2018   

 CS18010.C Co- design and  stakeholder events  held  30 September 2018   

 CS18010.D Local  developments and service design phase initiated under agreed 
project plans  

30 September 2018   

 CS18010.E Revised service specification and operational delivery  model agreed 
across partnership    

30 November 2018   

 CS18010.F Implement revised prevention offer from Youth Offending Service; 
target and respond to those at most risk of offending/re-offending 

31 December 2018   

 

 

  

 

CS18011 Improve workforce stability  31 March 2019   

Report presented to SLT (20th June 2018) which confirms the Rochdale approach to implementing NAAS. Project plan and Project board now in 
place to drive implementation. “Leading Relational Practice programme” commenced in July and builds on previous Strengthening Practice 
Programme in Rochdale. The programme is underpinned by the post qualifying practice standards to equip social workers and managers with the 
knowledge and skills to be ready to undertake NAAS (national assessment and accreditation). There will be two routes for Managers to endorse 
practitioners readiness to progress towards NAAS which are the portfolio progression route or the social workers annual PDR. The PDR 
framework is being revised to incorporate post qualifying professional standards (Knowledge and Skills Statements) Meeting with DfE link, 11th 
July 2018 confirmed we are on track with implementation.  
 
Recruitment and Retention working group (combined with NAAS) is in place. Work programme in development which incorporates conditions for 
success, revised job descriptions and job adverts, informed by post qualifying social work standards (KSS), revised career pathway which 

 

P
age 71



  

 

       

   

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2018-19 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  8  Of  9 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

supports continuous professional development, and learning from exit interviews. This will inform the refreshed recruitment and retention strategy 
to become a vibrant “Rochdale Offer”. Ongoing work to develop the Rochdale Children’s Social Care offer. Corporate agreement to revised terms 
and conditions. Constant recruitment activity through open days, compass event. Finalise recruitment and retention strategy in 2019/20. 
 

 Ref Name Due   

 CS18011.A Implement the NAAS (National Assessment and Accreditation 
System) to support social workers with their continuous professional 
development 

31 March 2019   

 CS18011.B Model for implementation agreed and signed off   and progressing in 
line with DfE expectations.  

31 July 2018   

 CS18011.C Refresh the recruitment and retention strategy to become a vibrant 
“Rochdale Offer” for all social workers 

31 December 2018   

 CS18011.D Revise training and development programme to support NAAS and 
Rochdale local offer  

31 October 2018   

 

 

  

 

CS18012 Improve placement sufficiency for cared for children  31 October 2018   

 

Cohort of children have been identified who need a bespoke family finding approach.  Process and procedure has been agreed in how to 
progress this.  Transformation monies have been obtained and this is being looked at in terms of marketing for identifying families who want to do 
specifically long term fostering.  Strategic permanence group are cited on the progress of this and will be the group that will monitor the impact.   
 
Sufficiency strategy has been reviewed and has been approved. Assessment and gap analysis is being undertaken in respect of foster carers to 
identify support and training needs. The Bridge has an action plan in place in terms of the core offer to SGO and fostering. 
Sufficiency model and options being progressed linked to innovation. 
 
Consultation with foster carers continues via the forums.  The working group as identified by the strategic permanence group will lead on seeking 
the views of stakeholders. A foster carer representative will be part of the working group that is going to look at a principle led approach and offer 
to children and carers. 
 

 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 CS18012.A Develop child centered bespoke family finding approaches informed 
by best practice, children and carers 

31 October 2018   

 CS18012.B Review sufficiency strategy from the perspective of children waiting 
to determine gaps and inform bespoke family finding 

31 October 2018   

 CS18012.C Consult with foster carers / adopters / children and staff, so the plan 
is vibrant and realistic and services are commissioned with meet 
identified needs  

31 October 2018   

 

 

  

 

CS18013 Implement revised statutory changes in Working Together 
2018 to all safeguarding activity 

 31 March 2019   

P
age 72



  

 

       

   

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2018-19 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  9  Of  9 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

The new arrangements under Working Together 2018 have remained the focus of the Board. A presentation was made to the Board Membership 
and it has remained a key agenda item since publication in July 2018. The proposed new arrangements document has been sent out to all 
partner agencies for consultation and early indications are that agencies are supportive of the proposed changes. 
 
Work has continued in respect of the Transitional Arrangements and the plans for the implementation of the new Rochdale Multi-Agency 
Safeguarding Arrangements. The arrangements have been completed in report form and are currently out for consultation with all identified 
partner agencies. Work is being undertaken in respect of financial arrangements, changes for the Board Business Unit and a review of impact on 
other arrangements in place. A proposed date of June / July 2019 has been agreed. Further work is being undertaken in respect of the GM 
Standards Board. Key representatives across the region are in place and there continues to be a number of key areas of development. There is 
also opportunity to consider those areas where GM Local Authorities can come together to ensure effective and coordinated work is undertaken 
where appropriate. This would also include consideration of those agencies who would cover GM area and would need to be involved in 
individual arrangements. The changes in respect of CDOP are being put in place and timescales requested to meet the cessation of the Board 
arrangements. The plan remains for a GM CDOP. 
 
The GM Standards Board provides the opportunity to ensure that regional issues are considered for all key partner agencies. Learning from Early 
Adopters are also being shared regionally via the Standards Board but also via the Regional Safeguarding Leads forum. Rochdale has also 
agreed to take part in an evaluation exercise sent out by Salford with regard to the Rapid Review and CSPR arrangements and fed back learning 
from involvement with the revised processes since July 2018. 

 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 CS18013.A Engage with partners to review the proposed changes in Working 
Together 2018 

31 March 2019   

 CS18013.B Undertake an options appraisal regarding different models of 
safeguarding in accordance with the new arrangements 

31 March 2019   

 CS18013.C Engage with regional partners and early adopter sites to implement 
learning. 

31 March 2019   

 

 

  

 

   

    

    

   

 

P
age 73



  

 

       

   

Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2018-19 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  1  Of  9 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
 

  

         

   
 

 

PH18001 Provide a resilient and robust health protection system  31 March 2019   

Objectives: Risks to population health and reputational risk to the council are reduced.  

The outbreak plan was competed and is operational. A cancer screening uptake plan was implemented throughout the year. The annual flu 
programme was completed for high risk groups and staff. The community infection prevention and control plan was completed as agreed. 
 

24/04/19 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 PH18001.A Finalise a new outbreak plan and test against examples 31 July 2018   

 PH18001.B Cancer screening uptake plan in place 30 June 2018   
 

 

  

 

 PH18001.C Annual Flu programme developed and implemented 31 March 2019   
 

 PH18001.D Community infection Control programme agreed and implemented  31 March 2019   

 

 

PH18002 Develop and implement the Integrated Prevention System 
Model  

 31 March 2019   

Objectives: Increased community resilience and individual wellbeing, reduced access to A&E / GP’s  

The Integrated Prevention system ‘Connecting You’ has been launched with all staff recruited. Communication materials have been produced 
and circulated and workshops held, to provide core team members and wider stakeholders with information and clear access routes. The 
Community Connectors have collated a robust data set which is now informing processes and the evaluation framework for the system as a 
whole. The new community builder posts that have been recruited through transformation funding are starting to have a real impact in 
neighbourhoods alongside facilitating the distribution of the Connecting You: Seed Fund. A work plan has been implemented up to the end of 
March 2019 and the forward plan for 2019/20 is currently being finalised. 

12/04/19 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 PH18002.A Launch of the model 31 May 2018   

 PH18002.B Agree and implement an evaluation process 31 August 2018   

 PH18002.C Agree a forward plan for 2019/20 31 March 2019   
 

 

  

 

PH18003 Lead the programme management and delivery of the 
prevention and access theme of the Rochdale Locality Plan 

 31 March 2019   

Objectives: delivery of prevention and access theme on track and milestones met  

All transformation projects in the Prevention and Access theme are now implemented and delivering. Outcome measures are being developed to 
assess the impact of the projects and a programme of evaluation has commenced. The Prevention and Access Partnership Board is in place and 
overseeing the delivery of GM and local transformation work as well as wider prevention developments. Work is underway to try and utilise 
business intelligence to enable better targeting of our preventative services. 

12/04/19 

 

P
age 74



  

 

       

   

Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2018-19 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  2  Of  9 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
 

  

         

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 PH18003.A Prevention and access partnership board in place for 18/19 30 April 2018   

 PH18003.B 

 

Prevention and access projects implemented and reported quarterly 31 March 2019   

 
 

PH18003.C CBA benefits realised 31 March 2019   

 

 

  

  

 

PH18004 Support and enable the development of a strong and resilient 
Voluntary Sector 

 31 January 2019   

Objectives: increase social value,  social capital, reduce isolation and loneliness and increase access to employment  

The development of this strategy is being progressed with the new Voluntary Sector Development Manager. A Voluntary Sector Workshop 
looking at volunteers and opportunities across the sector took place mid-September and this will inform the approach. Timescales have been 
reviewed and the Volunteering Strategy will be developed alongside the commencement of the new Voluntary Sector Infrastructure Support 
Organisation during 2019. 
 
The procurement process for the voluntary and community sector infrastructure is completed. The successful applicant is Action Together and we 
are now working together on the implementation plan for the new service. We expect the service to ‘go-live’ operationally in May however their 
leadership team are already establishing a presence and networks in the Borough. 

12/04/19 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 PH18004.A Develop a Borough wide Volunteering Strategy and action plan to 
increase the resilience of the voluntary sector 

31 January 2019   

 PH18004.B Commission a voluntary sector infrastructure service 31 October 2018   
 

 

  

 

PH18005 Lead the development of the Integrated Strategic Intelligence 
Function on behalf of the council, CCG and LCO 

 31 December 2018   

  

A programme of work was implemented and there was joint working led by Public Health across the Council and CCG on developing intelligence 
products and resources. A refreshed JSNA for the Borough was produced and is available for use. The Adverse Childhood Event Needs 
Assessment was commissioned and will report back in Q1 of 2019/20 
 

24/04/19 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 PH18005.A Leadership briefing paper 30 June 2018   

 PH18005.B ICB/LCO Paper 30 Sept 2018   
 

 

  

 

 PH18005.C JSNA website launched 31 July 2018   

P
age 75



  

 

       

   

Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2018-19 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  3  Of  9 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
 

  

         

 

 

 

PH18006 Lead the local mental health service transformation  31 October 2018   

Objectives: Improved wellbeing and access to essential services for people with mental health issues. 
 
The local suicide prevention group continues to meet regularly. The group has improved use of data, worked on notices at risk spots and improving 
communication in males at risk. The group has agreed to follow the GM Suicide Prevention Strategy. It is now agreeing a rolling action plan that links into GM 
work. 

 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 PH18006.A Establishment of local partnership board 30 April 2018   

 PH18006.B Work programme for the board to implement agreed 30 April 2018   

 PH18006.C Review of current offer to improve MH outcomes. Review and refresh 
if needed approach to suicide prevention. 

31 October 2018   

 

 

  

 

PH18007 Develop and implement a 3 year multi-agency  Tobacco 
control Action Plan aligned to the GM tobacco Strategy and action plan 

 31 March 2019   

Objectives: Reduce smoking prevalence to 13% (from 19.4%) and smoking in pregnancy to 6% (from 16.6%) by 2021, reduce sales of illicit tobacco, reduce 
crime relating to illicit sales. 

 

A ‘Making Smoking History in Rochdale’ partnership summit was held on the 2nd October, with a wide range of stakeholders attending. Priorities 
around tobacco for the next 2 years were agreed and these were consolidated into a draft Framework for Action. The lead for the adult smoking 
transformation project is now in post and is developing the implementation plan to establish a Pennine Acute Trust wide approach to tobacco 
addiction, including pathways of support for patients within the Trust to support them to ‘stop before the op’. The Framework for Action is 
currently being finalised in line with the new public health priorities for 2019/20. 
 
The Baby Clear programme, commissioned from PAHT Midwifery service in terms of delivery of smoking quits is not on target due to long term 
staff sickness. This lack of capacity has been raised with the provider and recruitment is now taking place after an approximate 5 months gap. 
Throughout this period the quits have been delivered by the 2 Midwifery Support staff. As of February 2019, overall, 25% of women setting a quit 
date achieved a 4 week quit. This is significantly below the target of 70%. As of December 2018, 53% were lost from the incentive scheme.  
Other elements of the programme are performing well 97% of pregnant women are CO monitored at booking (target 95%). Of those women 
achieving a 4 and 12 week quit all are CO validated quits.  
 
It is expected that following recruitment the smoking quit performance will improve.   
 

12/04/19 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 PH18007.A Action Plan is refreshed 30 June 2018   

 PH18007.B Adult smoking transformation projects implemented 31 March 2019   

 

 PH18005.D ACE needs assessment completed 31 December 2018   

P
age 76



  

 

       

   

Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2018-19 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  4  Of  9 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
 

  

         

 PH18007.C Smoking in Pregnancy Plan implemented and evaluated 31 March 2019   
 

  

 

PH18008 Implement a new delivery model for the Public Protection 
Service 

 31 March 2019   

Objectives: Risks to population health and reputational risk to the council are reduced.  

Staff restructure has now been implemented with an updated service plan produced. Staff are attending a range of team and service 
development sessions. From the 1

st
 October responsibility for the Public Protection Service has now transferred to the Neighbourhoods 

directorate. 

21/12/18 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 PH18008.A Staff restructure  completed  31 July 2018   

 PH18008.B Team development programme delivered 31 March 2019   

 PH18008.C Public Protection Service Plan refreshed  30 September 2018   
 

 

  

 

PH18009 Reduce avoidable deaths related to cancers  31 July 2018   

  

A multi-agency group met several times and actions were implemented as agreed. A communication plan was implemented at key times 
throughout the year across the Council and CCG. Immunisation rates have been monitored and a catch up campaign and communication plan 

were put in place to increase uptake of MMR to help prevent measles. 

24/04/19 

 

 

 
 

  

 

PH18010 Reduce avoidable deaths related to cardiovascular disease  31 March 2019   

  

A report on outcomes was taken to the Integrated Commissioning Board and informed the development of priorities going forward. The national 
Diabetes Prevention programme and Health checks programme were implemented and agreed for 2019/20 and performed well against national 
benchmarks. An equity audit of cardiac rehabilitation and outcomes review on CVD were completed. Further work in this area is carried forward 
to 2019/20 due to capacity issues in the team to complete this work in 2018/19. 
 

24/04/19 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 PH18010.A Develop and expand approaches to identify undiagnosed 
cardiovascular disease (CVD) – i.e. find the missing thousands to 
prevent, detect and treat heart disease at an early stage 

31 March 2020   

 PH18010.B National Diabetes Prevention Programme evaluated and forward 
plans agreed 

31 December 2018   

 

 

  

 

 PH18010.C Equity Audit 31 December 2018   

 

P
age 77



  

 

       

   

Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2018-19 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  5  Of  9 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
 

  

         

 PH18010.D Health Checks programme agreed for 2019/20  31 March 2019   

 

PH18011 Undertake a robust review of Link 4 Life and related leisure 
and culture services arrangements to ensure they are resilient and fit 
for purpose for the next 5-10 years 

 31 March 2019  

Objectives: Sport and physical activity strategy (in line with GM approaches and local needs)....Plan for future of L4L services in place 

 
Consultants appointed to develop new Sport England specification and adapt to Link4Life service delivery (with addition of Culture also). Specification to allow 
L4L to operate the Sport and Leisure centre in a commercial framework. Significant work around asset and maintenance responsibility – changes planned. 
Outcome based approach being progressed linking to H&W outcome framework. New leased and licences for Link4Life properties being developed. Contract and 
terms and conditions will be review/amended . L4L contract extended until 2028. Anticipated Cabinet report for new P.A approval in July 19. Estimated go live of 
new contract and framework March 2020 with revised management fee/calculation being developed with earlier phased introduction of some key elements of the 
revised contract. 

12/04/19 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 PH18011.A Review individual services and sites and agree proposed strategic 
direction 

31 December 2018   

 PH18011.B Partnership Agreement refreshed and in place 31 March 2019   
 

 

  

 

PH18012 Implement agreed GM Population Health Plan programmes at 
a local level  

 31 March 2019  

Objectives: Complete a local Age Friendly plan in line with GM strategy and plans....Support the Rochdale Borough Work and Health Plan ....Support GM Air 
Quality action plan. 

I have completed a draft plan for 2019/2020 which has gone to the GM Ageing Hub and will also be shared with Wider Leadership Team.  The 
steering Group are working towards completing the WHO Audit framework and we will also be carrying out some engagement events in Q1 
(2019/2020) with older residents in the borough to inform our Action Plan for 2020. 
 
The Rochdale Work and Health Steering Group met during September, with key partners coming together to provide system leadership and 
governance for the joint programme of work relating to health and employment within Rochdale.  A key priority in the group is to strengthen the 
contribution that Rochdale employers make to good quality work & healthy workplaces, including the public sector leading by example. Public 
Health, together with leads from across the council, have come together to progress RBC in becoming a gold standard workplace wellbeing 
employer.  A report was submitted to Leadership in June to seek endorsement to run a short Workforce Wellbeing Survey. The survey has now 
been completed and a Workforce Wellbeing stakeholder event is being planned for May 2019 to help inform a refreshed Workforce Wellbeing 
strategy for the organisation. 
 
Support GM Air Quality action plan; All actions are underway within the required timescales (Annual Status Report provides detail on the actions)  
Progress made with modelling for Clean Air Action Zone 
Joint Air Quality Unit conducted further local modelling for each LA district 
This local modelling identified NO2 exceedances within Rochdale Borough  
Consideration now being given to the best way to effect change in the areas of the modelled NO2 exceedances 

12/04/19 

 

 

P
age 78



  

 

       

   

Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2018-19 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  6  Of  9 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
 

  

         

 Ref Name Due   

 PH18012.A Complete a local Age Friendly plan in line with GM strategy and plans 31 March 2019   

 PH18012.B Support the Rochdale Borough  Work and Health Plan  31 March 2019   

 PH18012.C Support GM Air Quality action plan 31 March 2019   
 

 

  

 

PH18013 To lead agreed areas of the GM Population Health Plan on 
behalf of GM 

 31 March 2019  

Objectives: To lead the GM Suicide Prevention Partnership and Plan....To lead the development of GM Population Health Plan outcomes assurance framework, 
standards and excellence in GM programme....To lead Arts, Culture and Health Programme. 
 
The Rochdale Work and Health Steering Group met during September, with key partners coming together to provide system leadership and governance for the 
joint programme of work relating to health and employment within Rochdale. A key priority in the group is to strengthen the contribution that Rochdale employers 
make to good quality work & healthy workplaces, including the public sector leading by example. Public Health, together with leads from across the council, have 
come together to progress RBC in becoming a gold standard workplace wellbeing employer. A report was submitted to Leadership in June to seek endorsement 
to run a short Workforce Wellbeing Survey. The survey has now been completed and a Workforce Wellbeing stakeholder event is being planned for February 
2019 to help inform a refreshed Workforce Wellbeing strategy for the organisation. 
 
The local suicide prevention group meets regularly and has agreed to follow the GM Suicide Prevention Strategy. Local actions have included improved use of 
data, notices at risk spots and work to improve communication in males at risk. Rochdale contributes strongly to GM work on suicide prevention attending all 
meetings and influencing the development of the GM approach going forward. 
 

A Phase 1 GM Population Health dashboard was completed as agreed and a suite of standards were produced for testing across the system. An excellence in 
Gm programme was agreed and will focus on childhood obesity in 2019/20. 
 
 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 PH18013.A To lead the GM Suicide Prevention Partnership and Plan 31 March 2019   

 PH18013.B To lead the development of GM Population Health Plan outcomes 
assurance framework, standards and excellence in GM programme 

31 March 2019   

 PH18013.C To lead Arts, Culture and Health Programme 31 March 2019   
 

 

  

 

PH18014 Develop and implement a behaviour change programme part 
of the wider commitment to changing the conversation between citizen 
and state. 

 31 March 2019  

Objectives: reduction in demand for specified cohort of residents (test case) Boroughwide behaviour change programme in place... 

Work is ongoing towards a borough wide behaviour change programme. Options are currently being developed to be taken to Leadership early 
May 2019. 

12/04/19 

 

 

P
age 79



  

 

       

   

Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2018-19 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  7  Of  9 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
 

  

         

 Ref Name Due   

 PH18014.A Rochdale Borough population insight work completed. 30 April 2018   

 PH18014.B Behaviour change cohort and issue project agreed 31 March 2019   

 PH18014.C Project implemented and evaluated and plan in place for 2019/20 31 March 2019   
 

 

  

 

PH18015 Reduce childhood obesity  31 March 2019  

Objectives: Reduce childhood obesity rate by a quarter (25%) by 2024 (measurement: the National Child measurement programme Yr 6)....Reduction in children 
with decayed, missing or filled teeth. 

There has been a significant number of interventions delivered by a range of partners under the Sugar Smart banner. These include general 
awareness raising, supporting children and families to give up fizzy drinks (GULP), undertaking engagement with the Youth Council on the issue 
of consuming less sugar and trailing (in 1 school), reducing the sugar content of puddings served to children by one third. The childhood obesity 
partnership is signed up to Sugar Smart UK and the website promotes the work we are doing across the country.    
 
The Daily Toddle is now established in all children’s centres and significant progress has been made to roll this out to all private nurseries. 34% 
of schools undertake the Daily Mile.   
 

12/04/19 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 PH18015.A Ensuring Rochdale becomes a sugar smart borough. 31 March 2019   

 PH18015.B Increase opportunities for walking including the implementation of 
the daily mile and daily toddle.  

31 March 2019   

 

 

  

 

PH18016 Robust commissioning of key prescribed and non-prescribed 
services 

 31 March 2019  

Objectives: All services securely commissioned – mandation conditions met 

Procurement activity well advanced for HV/SN. Virgin contract +2 extension Contract performance and monitoring quarterly, regular updates to 
Com’s’ ing Mgrs. Mtgs. and SMT etc. 

12/04/19 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 PH18016.A Procurement/Development: Health visiting/ School Nursing, Post 
March 2019 sexual health commissioning arrangements 

31 March 2019   

 PH18016.B Maintenance & Monitoring: Drugs and Alcohol, Oral health 
improvement, Sexual health, NHS Health Checks , National Child 
Measurement Programme, Health Protection 

31 March 2019   

 

 

  

 

PH18017 Address key under-performing PH health outcomes relating to 
sexual health and oral health 

 31 March 2019  

Objectives: Review of sexual health programmes and implement key actions to improve screening uptake.....Improve chlamydia positive diagnosis rate and early 

P
age 80



  

 

       

   

Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2018-19 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  8  Of  9 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
 

  

         

diagnosis of HIV....Continue to implement the oral health improvement action plan. 

Improve chlamydia positive diagnosis rate - Linking closely with CCG Colleagues for quality assurance in Core+2, R U Clear, GP Alliance, 
CCG have met to plan programme of updates and training to improve quality of screens and also correct pathway for primary care. 
 
Pharmacy Card Offer -  for online  ordering of Chlamydia screening kits, the pilot has proved positive and increased  testing in the under 25yr 
olds. 
 
HIV Primary care workshops- PH have worked with GHT to deliver a pilot training /workshop offer to primary care teams and our sexual health 
leads support for offering HIV testing, and pathways to support for those with reactive results. This programme has proved successful and is now 
a commissioned service with GHT. Working with GM in the commissioning of Pash and HIVE. 
 
Oral Health - Elderly programme showing positive impact on data in comparison to last year’s baseline. 
Care homes have now been trained  and oral Health champions in place, 14 care homes  have proved 100% compliant at the latest quality check 
Assessment tool developed to use in quality checks. Oral Health Toolkit developed for provider’s reference.  
In the process of training domiciliary care agencies, linking with district nurses and hospice. Engaging with LPC to confirm stock availability for 
care homes. Commenced training with secondary care(multiple wards with Northern Care alliance) 
 
Children’s 3-5 year olds , Fluoride Varnish programme commenced in schools from November 2018, Private Day nursery’s in August 2018 and 
full roll out in November 18.All CC have programme of delivery  where Childminders and access the service for the children in their care. 
GDP’s aware of programme Fluoride Varnish nurses are able to direct families to those practices with NHS availability. 
 
Toothbrushing in schools commenced November 2018 for 2- 5 yr olds, availability for schools to purchase packs and continue programme 
throughout the whole school. Health Visitor dental packs ongoing for 1 and 2 yr assessment stages. 
 
Oral Health Improvement team are delivering training for early years and primary schools on the use of resource boxes with Key stage 1 and 2  
teaching packs, linking with Change4Life programmes GULP challenge and the Sugar Smart borough. 
Support to Health Visitor and Midwifery training, targeted home visits on referral from Health Visitors and School nurses. 
 

17/12/18 

 

 

 Ref Name Due   

 PH18017.A Review of sexual health programmes and implement key actions to 
improve screening uptake. 

31 March 2019   

 PH18017.B Improve chlamydia positive diagnosis rate and early diagnosis of HIV 31 March 2019   

 PH18017.C Continue to implement the oral health improvement action plan 31 March 2019   
 

 

  

 

PH18018 Complete a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment on Adverse 
Childhood Experiences and  

 31 March 2019  

Objectives: Complete a Needs Assessment for the borough, and set out a proposed action plan.....Decreasing the impact of ACE's on school readiness...  
 
Completion date revised to 30.4.19, on target for completion. Needs assessment will be presented to RBCSB and to stakeholders on 30.5.19. 

    

P
age 81



  

 

       

   

Public Health and Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2018-19 
 

  

         

          
 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status 
 

 

          

         

         
    

Page  9  Of  9 
 

    

  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
 

  

         

 

P
age 82



APPENDIX

HEALTH, SCHOOLS AND CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Work Programme 2019/2020 

The purpose of the Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee is:-
 
To be the responsible Committee for the Council’s health scrutiny function (with the 
exception of any referrals to the Secretary of State arising from statutory  consultations being 
referred to Council for determination); for scrutiny of Health and Wellbeing (including scrutiny 
of the Health and Wellbeing Board, particularly with reference to joint commissioning 
proposals arising between the Council and the CCG with regard to health and social care 
arrangements); and for scrutiny of partnerships or key contractors: (eg Inspired Spaces), 
Child and Adult Social Care Services; Early Help and Schools Services; the Borough’s two 
Safeguarding Boards and for the overview of the respective Portfolio Holders and Directors.
 

a. To respond to consultation by Cabinet and the Health and Wellbeing Board on 
relevant policy development proposals. 

b. To scrutinise the in-year performance of relevant Council Services, partnership 
bodies and other appropriate bodies, in accordance with the Council’s Performance 
Management Framework and against approved Service Plans, where appropriate. 

c. To instigate the appropriate action in response to adverse service performance.
d. To scrutinise inspection reports and associated action plans produced by external 

agencies (where appropriate to this Committee).
e. To review and scrutinise executive decisions where appropriate to this Committee in 

accordance with the Council’s Constitution, which have been called-in by Members of 
the Council. 

f. To receive reports, where appropriate, from the Council’s representatives on outside 
bodies, and to direct representatives to report to the Council, where appropriate.

g. To scrutinise Safeguarding arrangements, including consideration of Safeguarding 
Boards’ Annual Reports

h. To commission, scope and oversee studies and reviews relating to relevant Council 
Services and issues directly affecting the Borough and, where appropriate, to make 
recommendations to the Cabinet arising from such studies and reviews. 

i. To consider Directorate Plans in line with Council Policy.
j. To be the Council body identified to receive issues and reports from Health Watch
k. To consider, as relevant, reports from the Care Quality Commission as part of the 

wider health scrutiny considerations.
l. To receive minutes of the joint health scrutiny bodies.

26th June 2019

Work Programme To consider the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2018/2019

Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Directorate Plan Updates (4th Quarter 
2017/2018)
 Children’s Services
 Adult Care Services
 Public Health Service

Performance management and 
monitoring

Page 83

Agenda Item 11



17th September 2019

Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2018/19

Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Adult Care Market Oversight Report -1st 
Quarter 2018/19
Oral Health – update report Scrutiny of partner/providers
Northern Care NHS Alliance – Update on 
service provision

Scrutiny of partner/providers

Link4Life Annual Performance Review 
20178/19

Performance management and 
monitoring

Social Care Complaints – 1st quarter 
2018/19

Performance management and 
monitoring

Joint Health O&S Committee for Pennine 
Acute Hospitals NHS Trust

Minutes of information

20th November 2019

Work Programme Update 
Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
SUNRISE Team – Annual Report 2018/19 Scrutiny of partner/providers
Directorate Plan Updates (1st and 2nd 
Quarter 2019/20)
 Children’s Services
 Adult Care Services
 Public Health Service

Performance management and 
monitoring

Adult Care Market Oversight Report -2nd 
Quarter 2019/20

Performance management and 
monitoring

Rochdale Borough Safeguarding Boards for 
Children and Adults – annual report 2018/19 

Performance monitoring and 
management

Savings Proposals Scrutiny of proposals
GMCA Health Scrutiny Committee Minutes For information

19th February 2020

Work Programme 2019/20 Update
Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust -  
Update – presentation on services

Health Scrutiny

Directorate Plan Update (3rd Quarter 
2019/20):

 Children’s Services
 Adult Care Services
 Public Health Service

Performance monitoring and 
management

Adult Care Market Oversight Report – 3rd 
Quarter 2019/20

Performance monitoring and 
management

Social Care Complaints  - update Performance monitoring and 
management

Special Autism School Performance management and 
monitoring

Page 84



Link4Life – 6 month review (2019/20) Performance monitoring and 
management

Items to be scheduled:
a. RBC Adoption Service – Annual Report 
b. Special Educational Needs provision in Rochdale (SEND)
c. North West Ambulance Service – presentation on service provision for the Rochdale 

Borough

Page 85


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	13-3-19

	6 Joint Scrutiny Panel for Pennine Care (Mental health) Trust
	7 Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee for Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust
	8 Site for New Special School
	9 3rd & 4th Quarter Social Care Complaints
	Append. 1 for 3rd & 4th Quarter Social Care Complaints
	Append. 2 for 3rd & 4th Quarter Social Care Complaints

	10 Adult, Children & Public Health Directorate Plans 2018-19 Quarter 4 Performance Update
	Append. 1 for Adult, Children & Public Health Directorate Plans 2018-19 Quarter 4 Performance Update
	Append. 2 for Adult, Children & Public Health Directorate Plans 2018-19 Quarter 4 Performance Update
	Append. 3 for Adult, Children & Public Health Directorate Plans 2018-19 Quarter 4 Performance Update

	11 Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee - Work Programme

